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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) of China
New Economy Fund Limited (the “Company”), it is my pleasure to present
you the Company’s annual report and audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2012 (the “Year”).

The Company is a closed-ended investment company established on 1
February 2010. By investing globally in both private and public enterprises
supported by the new economies of Greater China, the Company is
devoted to achieving long-term capital appreciation for professional
investors.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Company reported a net profit attributable to shareholders of
HK$4,808,320 during the Year, which consisted of the net unrealized
gain of HK$27,838,630 arising from the net mark to market gains
taken on the investment positions in the portfolio, the net realized
loss of HK$14,916,621 arising from the trading of equities securities
listed in Hong Kong and the United States and the net realized gain of
HK$485,350 arising from the trading of two index futures contracts in
Hong Kong that were exclusively for hedging purpose during the Year.

The Company reported a net asset value of approximately HK$0.80 per
share as at 31 December 2012. The net asset value of the Company
increased during the Year due to unrealized mark to market valuation
taken on the investment positions in the portfolio. The Company will
continue to monitor investments carefully and expect improvement in its
valuation as market conditions recover further.

During the Year, the Company received shareholders’ approval to
enter into a new investment management agreement with the existing
investment manager, CITIC Securities International Investment
Management (HK) Limited (the “Investment Manager”) (the “Agreement”),
on 19 December 2012. Further details of the Agreement are set out in
note 26 to the financial statements and the circular of the Company dated
30 November 2012.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

During the Year, the market performed better than 2011, the Hang Seng
Index and Hang Seng China Enterprises Index (“HKCEI") rose by 22.91%
and 11.73% respectively year-on-year. With company performance in
general remained steady in the first half of 2012, the Company undertook
more investments during the second half of the Year. The most significant
gain of our investment portfolio comes from HKT Trust and HKT Limited
(6823.HK) amounted to approximately HK$5,792,000, which included
both realized and unrealized gains. The Company will continue to deploy
a sound risk management strategy with an aim to achieving stable retuns
on investment for shareholders.

Looking into 2013, we remain optimistic that the Chinese economy will
maintain sustainable growth benefiting from improved cost structure
of most Chinese enterprises and a combination of steady exports and
increasing domestic consumer consumption. With interest rates staying
low and raw material costs falling by an average of 20%, we expect
2013 will be a good year for Chinese equities market and more quality
investment opportunities will emerge.

Currently, the effective risk free rate in China is standing at approximately
5%, a further cut in the first quarter of 2013 will push up the overall price-
earnings ratio of Chinese equity market, together with an anticipated
corporate earnings growth at 15-20%, we expect the China A-share
market and the HKCEI could surge significantly in 2013. The Company,
therefore, aims to allocate more cash into equities, especially the Chinese
companies listed in Hong Kong, focusing on new energy, technology, and
waste management sectors where we expect they will outperform the
rest.

After the smooth transition of leadership in China, we expect that there will
be more market favourable policies to be announced which would boost
liquidity further. In addition, the reform of state-owned enterprise and
capitalization of rural land will continue to play a significant role in creating
value for most of the Chinese companies.

On the downside, labour costs could rise further to erode profit margin,
inflation might return at the second half of 2013; and property price
might hike too rapidly which could solicit further tightening policy. We
also remain cautious on the possibility of rising Sino-Japan tension which
might add volatility to the market.

The Company will continue to look for good investment opportunities
and will not hesitate to make a move when the time is appropriate. With
our excellent investment and risk management team, we believe it will be
another productive year for both our investors and our team.
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Following the successful listing of the Company on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 6 January 2011 (the “Listing
Date”), the Company held seventeen investments in listed companies on
31 December 2012, comprising eleven equity securities listed in Hong
Kong, three American Depositary Shares (“ADS”) listed in the United
States and three debt securities listed in Singapore. The largest one held
by the Company is in the information technology sector focusing on Hong
Kong and the Mainland China markets.

Details of the Company’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are as follows:

At 31 December 2012

Listed equity securities - Hong Kong
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Particular Net asset Dividend % of net
of issued Proportion Unrealized attributable received/ assets
shares  of investee’s gain/(loss) tothe receivable of the
Name of Place of held  capital owned Market recognized Company  during the year Company
investee incorporation fECRT kEfRE Cost value  BEARER FAREE  AEECR/  HRLATFEE
frREAAER MRS Bt DEERLA A i hE/(ER) BERE EHRE READL
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(BzE1) (Fizt2)
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TEL TEL TEL TR
(8)  EPRO Limited The Cayman 33,000,000 0.63% 24,750 17,160 (7,590) HKS1.81 - 7.06
HERRAT Islands orcinary milion
REte shares of 1,810,007
HKS0.01 each
33,000,000/
SREB00ET
LERR
(o)  Digtal China Bermuda 1,100,000 0.10% 13820 14,542 22 HKS7.69 159 598
Holdings BEE orclnary milion
Limited shares of 7,690,000 %7
BN HK80.10 each
BRAT 11000008
BREGE0.10%T
LEER
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Particular Net asset Dividend % of net
of issued Proportion Unrealized attributable received/ assets
shares  of investee’s gain/(loss) to the receivable of the
Name of Place of held  capital owned Market recognized Company  during the year Company
investee incorporation MEERT FERHRE Cost vae  BRRFEE ARG AEESH/  ERLTEE
FrRELIER MR IbE RitE  DEERLA s W hE/(ER) EETE EHRE Y
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(Hfz1) (Mzt2)
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tk Tk Tk TR
() Lenovo Group Hong Kong 2,000,000 0.02% 12,193 14,020 1,827 US$0.50 290 517
Limited &4 ordinary million
BEEBARAT shares of 500,000%7T
HK30.025 each
2,000,000
BREB0.0S5ET
LEER
() PCCW Limited Hong Kong 4,024,000 0.06% 12,484 13,682 1,198 HKS4.97 78 563
EARRERAT B ordinary milion
shares of 4,970,000
HKS0.25 each
4,024,000
EREE0SET
LERR
() Kunlun Energy Bermuda 800,000 0.01% 11,377 12,928 1,551 HK$4.00 - 532
Company BRE ordinary milion
Limited shares of 4,000,00077
ERvRARLT HKS0.01 each
800,000/
BREBOOET
LEER
f)  HKT Trust and Hong Kong 1,595,000 0.02% 9,500 12,026 2,503 HKS7.69 542 495
HKT Limited 3 ordinary milion
EASHEHESR shares of 76900007
SHERAT HK$0.0005 each
1,595,000%
ShEf
0.0005E7T.2
AR
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Particular Net asset Dividend % of net
of issued Proportion Unrealized attributable received/ assets
shares  of investee’s gain/(loss) to the receivable of the
Name of Place of held  capital owned Market recognized Company  during the year Company
investee incorporation MEERT FERHRE Cost vae  BRRFEE ARG AEESH/  ERLTEE
FrRELIER MR IbE RitE  DEERLA s W hE/(ER) EETE EHRE Y
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(Hfz1) (Mzt2)
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tk Tk Tk TR
(9 ChinaLongyuan The People’s 2,000,000 0.02% 10,502 10,700 198 RMBG6.48 - 440
Power Group Republic H shares of million
Corporation of China RMB1.00 ARE
Limited (the “PRC) each 6,480,007
HEERENEE REARKAE 20000008
RirERAR (hE]) SREBARYE
10072 HER
(n) - China Mobile Hong Kong 113,000 0.0006% 9,530 10,198 668 RMB4.07 - 419
Limited Bk ordinary milion
HEBHBRAR shares of AR%
HKS0.1 each 4,070,000
113000 ER
AB01AT
LERR
() Dongjiang The PRC 310,300 0.26% 7,990 9,899 2,276 RMB5.44 191 407
Environment i H shares of million
Company Limited RMB1.00 each ARE
BIRRRABRAA 310300 5,440,000
BREBARY
100722 HiR
() Beiing Hong Kong 120,000 0.01% 5,510 6,054 544 HKS4.06 84 249
Enterprises &% ordinary million
Holdings shares of 4,060,000/ 7C
Limited HKS0.1 each
IRERARAT 120,000% &R
EIEDRE
LERR
(k) Tencent The Caymen 5,000 0.0003% 1,341 1,241 (100) HKS0.11 - 051
Holdings Islands ordinary million
Limited REEE shares of 1100007
ERARARLA HK$0.0001 each
5000 &k
AE0.0001 T
LERR
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ADS - The United States

XEFERD - XE

Net asset Dividend % of net

Particular Proportion Unrealized attributable received/ assets

of ADS  of investee’s gain/(loss) to the receivable of the

Name of Place of held  capital owned Market recognized Company  during the year Company

investee incorporation  FiEEHE REARE Cost vaie  EEEAEE ROAEE  AEECHR/  HRLFEE

frREAER HRALES RitiE  DEERLH A nE hE/(ER) BERE ERRE BEAM
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(1) (o)

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEr TiEn T

() NetEase, Inc. The Cayman 18,000 0.014% 8279 5935 (2,344) US$0.35 - 244
B507 Islands milion
REEE 350,000% 7T

(m) Renrennc. The Caymen 200,000 0.062% 21,756 5,302 24,065 US$0.58 - 218
ANRT Islands milion
REES 580,000% 7T

(n) Focus Media The Cayman 25,400 0.002% 3,857 5,054 1,197 Us$0.27 23 2.08
Holding Islands million
Limited REEE 270,000%7t

ARERERERAA




Listed debt securities — Singapore
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% of net Interest
Unrealized Yield assets received/
gain/(loss) per annum of the accrued
Name of Place of Market recognized (%) Maturity Company  during the year
issuer incorporation Quantity Cost vaue  BEEAEE FEHE date HEDT AEEEW/
BAR EMELBE g8 A nE hE/(ER) (%) HHMR  EERERMM JEatRIS
(Note 1)
(hiH1)
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn Tk
(o) Chaowei Power The Cayman 10,000,000 12,248 12,816 568 725 24 September 521 243
Holdings Limited Islands 2017
ERBNERERAR REEE N17%
9R2AA
() China WindPower Bermuda 9,800,000 10,396 10,855 459 6.375 4 April 2014 446 491
Group Limited BEs M4F4A4R
HEEESEERAA
() Hero Asia Investment The PRC 5,000,000 6,094 6,191 a7 45 21 December 2.54 169
Limited e 2013
(A wholy-owned 135
subsidiary of 124218
China Longyuan Power
Group Corporation
Limited)
EDREARAT
(RREERENEE
FHERAN
2EHEEMELA)
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At 31 December 2011

R2011 5128310

Listed equity securities - Hong Kong LhESEES R
Particular Net asset Dividend % of net
of issued Proportion Unrealized attributable received/ assets
shares  of investee’s gain/(loss) tothe receivable of the
Name of Place of held  capital owned Market recognized Company  during the year Company
investee incorporation R kEfRE Cost value  BEARER FAREE  AEECR/  HALATFEE
frREAAER MRS Bit#E  DEERLA A i hE/(ER) BERE FEHRE READL
(Note 3) (Note 2)
(FizE3) (Fizt2)
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TEn TiEL TiEL TR
Dongjiang The PRC 306,900 0.24% 7,886 7519 (367) RMB2.27 - 3.15
Environment f H shares of million
Company RMB1.00 ARE
Limited gach 2,270,000
RIDBRRH 306900 R EHER
ARAT ARE1007T2
HiR
HKT Trust and Hong Kong 1,200,000 0.019% 5436 5,460 2 HKS5.84 - 229
HKT Limited ) ordinary million
BASHERE shares of 5,840,000
EREAERAA HKS0.0005 each BT
1,200,000 5%
HHO0005ETL
ADS - The United States XEFRERG - XE
Net asset Dividend % of net
Particular Proportion Unrealized attributable received/ assets
of ADS  of investee’s gain/(loss) tothe receivable of the
Name of Place of held  capital owned Market recognized Company  during the year Company
investee incorporation  FiEEEE REARE Cost vaue ~ BRHEAER FAREE  AEECHR/  HALFEE
FrREARER MRS Rt ARERLH A nE hE/(ER) BERE FEHRE BEAM
(Note 3) (Note 2)
(F3ta) (fst2)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FAn A TH#R TH#R
Renren Inc. The Cayman 500,000 0.13% 54,390 13871 (40,519 US§1.57 - 582
VA Islands million
FEES 1570000% T



The unrealized gain/(loss) represented the changes in fair value of the respective
investments during the year ended 31 December 2012.

The calculation of net assets attributable to the Company is based on the latest
published quarterly/interim results or annual report of the respective investments
at the end of each reporting period.

The unrealized gain/(loss) represented the changes in fair value of the respective
investments during the year ended 31 December 2011.

A brief description of the business and financial information of the
investments is as follows:

(@)

EPRO Limited (“EPRQ”) is principally engaged in provision
of professional information technology contract services and
maintenance services; and re-selling of hardware and software. No
dividend was received by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2012. The unaudited profit attributable to shareholders
of EPRO for the six months period ended 31 December 2012
was approximately HK$42 million and the unaudited net assets
attributable to shareholders of EPRO as at 31 December 2012 was
approximately HK$288 million. The fair value of the investment in
EPRO is based on quoted market bid prices.

Digital China Holdings Limited (“Digital China”) is principally
engaged in the sale and distribution of general information
technology products and system products, provision of supply
chain services and information technology services. A dividend
income of approximately HK$159,000 was recognized in the
statement of comprehensive income of the Company. The
unaudited profit attributable to shareholders of Digital China for the
nine months period ended 31 December 2012 was approximately
HK$1,171 million and the unaudited net assets attributable to
shareholders of Digital China as at 31 December 2012 was
approximately HK$7,641 million. The fair value of the investment in
Digital China is based on quoted market bid prices.

Lenovo Group Limited (“Lenovo”) is principally engaged in the
provision of advanced information technology products and
services. A dividend income of approximately HK$290,000 was
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income of the
Company. The unaudited profit attributable to shareholders of
Lenovo for the nine months period ended 31 December 2012
was approximately US$508 million and the unaudited net assets
attributable to shareholders of Lenovo as at 31 December
2012 was approximately US$2,581 million. The fair value of the
investment in Lenovo is based on quoted market bid prices.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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PCCW Limited (“PCCW?”) is principally engaged in the provision
of local, mobile and international telecommunications services,
internet access services, interactive multimedia and pay-TV
services. A dividend income of approximately HK$78,000 was
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income of the
Company. The audited profit attributable to shareholders of
PCCW for the year ended 31 December 2012 was approximately
HK$1,663 million and the audited net assets attributable to
shareholders of PCCW as at 31 December 2012 was approximately
HK$8,979 million. The fair value of the investment in PCCW is
based on quoted market bid prices.

Kunlun Energy Limited (“Kunlun Energy”) is principally engaged
in the exploration and production of crude oil and natural gas in
the PRC, the Republic of Kazakhstan, the Sultanate of Oman,
Peru, the Kingdom of Thailand, the Azerbaijan Republic and the
Republic of Indonesia, and the sales of natural gas, LNG processing
and terminal and transmission of natural gas in the PRC. No
dividend was received by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2012. The unaudited profit attributable to shareholders
of Kunlun Energy for the six months period ended 30 June 2012
was approximately HK$3,500 million and the unaudited net assets
attributable to shareholders of Kunlun Energy as at 30 June
2012 was approximately HK$40,269 million. The fair value of the
investment in Kunlun Energy is based on quoted market bid prices.

HKT Trust and HKT Limited (“HKT”) is principally engaged in the
provision of integrated telecommunications service. A dividend
income of approximately HK$542,000 was recognized in the
statement of comprehensive income of the Company. The audited
profit attributable to shareholders of HKT for the year ended 31
December 2012 was approximately HK$1,610 million and the
audited net assets attributable to shareholders of HKT as at 31
December 2012 was approximately HK$30,934 million. The fair
value of the investment in HKT is based on quoted market bid
prices.

China Longyuan Power Group Corporation Limited (“China
Longyuan”) is principally engaged in wind and coal power generation
and sale, coal trading and other related business in the PRC. No
dividend was received by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2012. The unaudited profit attributable to shareholders
of China Longyuan for the six months period ended 30 June 2012
was approximately RMB1,460 million and the unaudited net assets
attributable to shareholders of China Longyuan as at 30 June
2012 was approximately RMB26,020 million. The fair value of the
investment in China Longyuan is based on quoted market bid prices.
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China Mobile Limited (“China Mobile”) is principally engaged in the
provision of mobile telecommunication and related services. No
dividend was received by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2012. The audited profit attributable to shareholders
of China Mobile for the year ended 31 December 2012 was
approximately RMB129,274 million and the audited net assets
attributable to shareholders of China Mobile as at 31 December
2012 was approximately RMB723,447 million. The fair value of the
investment in China Mobile is based on quoted market bid prices.

Dongjiang Environment Company Limited (“Dongjiang
Environment”) is principally engaged in environmental protection
industry. A dividend income of approximately HK$191,000 was
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income of the
Company. The unaudited profit attributable to shareholders of
Dongjiang Environment for the nine months period ended 30
September 2012 was approximately RMB204 million and the
unaudited net assets attributable to shareholders of Dongjiang
Environment as at 30 September 2012 was approximately
RMB2,077 million. The fair value of the investment in Dongjiang
Environment is based on quoted market bid prices.

Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (“Beijing Enterprises”) is
a conglomerate and its principal businesses included (i) the
distribution and sale of piped natural gas and the provision of
related services in the PRC; (ii) the production, distribution and
sale of beer in the PRC; (jii) the construction of sewage and water
treatment plants and other infrastructural facilities and the provision
of related services in the PRC; and (iv) investment in transportation
infrastructure in the PRC. A dividend income of approximately
HK$84,000 was recognized in the statement of comprehensive
income of the Company. The unaudited profit attributable to
shareholders of Beijing Enterprises for the six months ended 30
June 2012 was approximately HK$1,819 million and the unaudited
net assets attributable to shareholders of Beijing Enterprise as at 30
June 2012 was approximately HK$38,452 million. The fair value of
the investment in Beijing Enterprises is based on quoted market bid
prices.
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Tencent Holdings Limited (“Tencent”) is principally engaged
in the provision of internet value-added services, mobile and
telecommunication value-added services and online advertising
services to users in the PRC. No dividend income was received by
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2012. The audited
profit attributable to shareholders of Tencent for the year ended 31
December 2012 was approximately RMB12,732 million and the
audited net assets attributable to shareholders of Tencent as at 31
December 2012 was approximately RMB41,298 million. The fair value
of the investment in Tencent is based on quoted market bid prices.

NetEase, Inc. is principally engaged in the provision of internet and
online game services in the PRC. No dividend was received by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2012. The unaudited
profit attributable to shareholders of NetEase, Inc. for the year ended 31
December 2012 was approximately US$584 million and the unaudited
net assets attributable to shareholders of NetEase, Inc. as at 31
December 2012 was approximately US$2,504 milion. The fair value of
the investment in NetEase, Inc. is based on quoted market bid prices.

Renren Inc. is principally engaged in the provision of social
networking internet platform in the PRC. No dividend was received
by the Company during the year ended 31 December 2012. The
unaudited loss attributable to shareholders of Renren Inc. for the
year ended 31 December 2012 was approximately US$75 million
and the unaudited net assets attributable to shareholders Renren
Inc. as at 31 December 2012 was approximately US$1,107 million.
The fair value of the investment in Renren Inc. is based on quoted
market bid prices.

Focus Media Holding Limited (“Focus Media”) operates the PRC’s
largest lifestyle targeted interactive digital media networks. Focus
Media offers one of the most comprehensive targeted interactive
digital media platforms aimed at Chinese consumers at various
urban locations. A dividend income of approximately HK$23,000
was recognized in the statement of comprehensive income of the
Company. The unaudited profit attributable to shareholders of
Focus Media for the nine months period ended 30 September 2012
was approximately US$161 million and the unaudited net assets
attributable to shareholders of Focus Media as at 30 September
2012 was approximately US$1,371 million. The fair value of the
investment in Focus Media is based on quoted market bid prices.

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited (“Chaowei Power”) issued the
USD settled convertible bonds amounted to RMB633,000,000
and is listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
(*SGX”) on 25 September 2012 (“Chaowei Power Bond”).
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Chaowei Power is principally engaged in manufacturing and sales
of motive batteries and electrode plates. Chaowei Power Bond
has a fixed rate interest of 7.25% per annum and the interests are
payable semi-annually in arrear on 24 March and 24 September
each year. The unaudited profit attributable to shareholders of
Chaowei Power for the six months period ended 30 June 2012
was approximately RMB322 million and the unaudited net assets
attributable to shareholders of Chaowei Power as at 30 June
2012 was approximately RMB1,933 million. The fair value of the
investment in Chaowei Power is based on quoted bid prices.

China WindPower Group Limited (“China WindPower”)
issued the CNY denominated guarantee bonds amounted to
CNY750,000,000 and is listed on the SGX on 5 April 2011 (“China
WindPower Bond”).

China WindPower is principally engaged in engineering,
procurement and construction of power plants, manufacture
of equipment, operation and maintenance of power plants and
investment in power plants. China WindPower Bond has a fixed rate
interest of 6.375% per annum and the interests are payable semi-
annually in arrear on 4 April and 4 October each year. The audited
profit attributable to shareholders of China WindPower for the six
months period ended 30 June 2012 was approximately HK$25
million and the unaudited net assets attributable to shareholders
of China WindPower as at 30 June 2012 was approximately
HK$4,413 million. The fair value of the investment in China
WindPower Bond is based on quoted bid prices.

Hero Asia Investment Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
China Longyuan, which has issued the CNY denominated bonds
amounted to CNY690,000,000 and is listed on the SGX on 21
December 2011 (“China Longyuan Bond”).

China Longyuan is principally engaged in wind and coal power
generation and sale, coal trading and other related business in
the PRC. China Longyuan Bond has an interest rate of 4.50%
per annum and the interests are payable semi-annually in arrear
on 21 June and 21 December each year. The unaudited profit
attributable to shareholders of China Longyuan for the six months
period ended 30 June 2012 was approximately RMB1,460 million
and the unaudited net assets attributable to shareholders of China
Longyuan as at 30 June 2012 was approximately RMB26,020
million. The fair value of the investment in China Longyuan Bond is
based on quoted bid prices.
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The Company reported a net profit attributable to shareholders of
HK$4,808,320 during the Year, which consisted of the net unrealized gain
of HK$27,838,630 arising from the net mark to market gains taken on the
investment positions in the portfolio as listed out above, the net realized
loss of HK$14,916,621 arising from the trading of equities securities listed
in Hong Kong and the United States amounted to a net realized gain of
HK$8,194,047 and the net realized loss of HK$23,110,668, respectively,
and the net realized gain of HK$485,350 arising from the trading of two
index futures contracts in Hong Kong that were exclusively for hedging
purpose during the Year.

The top three investments with realized gain and loss for the year ended
31 December 2012 are summarized as below:

Top three realized gain for the year ended 31 December 2012

Name of investment

RABIRAF E 2 AR R FE(L4E7) 4,808,320 /8 7T
FEERLEMAIEEFRIRERSE E@Zﬁfﬁaﬂﬁz
U B AR A 2 R B R W # )$HE 27,838,630 5 T
a%ﬁa&%tﬂ?ﬁéﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁéizazﬁ%ﬂa@ﬁ
14,916,621 BT (D RIHEEE B LB S MEL
FEBIRINEFE 8,194,047 BT A EE X F g
%R 28 1 B A WY B B3R 5185 E 28,110,668 A TT AR )
ERAFEEERH AENEESEBENMIEIEE
HEANESE 2 B EIRIREEF(E 485,350/87T °

REZE2012F12 A31 A IEFEHSEFRWEREE
2= RIEEBMm
HBE2012F 12 A31 B FE=ZATER WS

Realized gain

RELH 2 # R R
HK$’000

FAT

HKT Trust and HKT Limited EBEA 1*%&53%‘/%*?175&& 3,289
China Telecom Corporation Limited FREMRDBREREA 2,537
China Unicom (Hong Kong) Limited ‘:F'.Hupﬁ(ﬁlﬁ)ﬁfﬁ 2,096

Top three realized loss for the year ended 31 December 2012

Name of investment

BE2012F 1231 BLEEE=ZACEBER

Realized loss

REAB E#BRER
HK$'000

FET

Renren Inc. AANRT] 23,944
Lenovo Group Limited BB EE B[R AT 912
Baidu Inc. EIEAG 341




LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
GEARING

The Company has obtained stock borrowing facilities during the year
ended 31 December 2011. As at 31 December 2012, the Company did
not have any stock borrowings (31 December 2011: Nil).

The Company has maintained a sufficient cash position which will allow it
to capture opportunities with good upside when the opportunities present
themselves in both listed and private equities.

As at 31 December 2012, the gearing ratio, defined as total borrowings
divided by shareholders’ equities, was nil (31 December 2011: Nil). The
Company did not have any borrowing as at 31 December 2012 (31
December 2011: Nil).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
Year (2011: Nil).

CHARGES ON COMPANY’S ASSET AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There were no other charges on the Company’s assets or significant
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2012 (31 December 2011: Nil).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On the Listing Date, the Company completed a share placement and
a total of 303,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were placed at
a price of HK$1.08 per share for a total cash consideration, before the
related issue expenses, of HK$312,090,000. Since the Listing Date, there
has been no change in the capital structure of the Company. The capital
of the Company comprises only ordinary shares.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND COMMITMENT

During the Year, the Company made no capital expenditures or any other
commitments (2011 Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

During the Year, the Company did not acquire any subsidiaries or
associated companies (2011: Nil).
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company has seventeen investments as at 31 December 2012,
which comprised of equities securities and debt securities listed in Hong
Kong, Singapore or the United States. The largest one held by the
Company is in the information technology sector focusing on Hong Kong
and the Mainland China markets.

The rest of the net proceeds gained will be applied by the Investment
Manager in making investments according to the investment objective,
policies and restrictions of the Company and the requirements of the
Articles of Association of the Company, the Listing Rules and the
investment management agreement. Any proceeds not deployed are
placed in bank deposits or invested in money market instruments or
money market funds.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2012, the Company had no employees (31 December
2011: Nil) but had three Executive Directors (31 December 2011: Three)
and three Independent Non-executive Directors (31 December 2011:
Three).

FOREIGN CURRENCY FLUCTUATION

The Board believes that foreign exchange risks are minimal as the
Company mainly uses the Hong Kong or United States dollar to carry out
its business transactions.

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to take this opportunity to express our gratitude
to our management team of the Company and the Investment Manager
for their dedication and contribution this past Year. We would also like
to extend our sincere thanks and appreciation to our shareholders and
business partners for their continuous support and confidence in the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
China New Economy Fund Limited
Craig Blaser Lindsay

Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 21 March 2013
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Craig Blaser Lindsay, aged 58, Chairman of the Company. Mr.
Lindsay is responsible for the management and formulation of the
Company'’s overall investment objective and policies. Mr. Lindsay was
appointed as Chairman on 28 July 2010 and has been Director of the
Company since 1 February 2010.

Mr. Lindsay graduated from the Bloomfield College in USA with a Bachelor
of Arts degree in Accounting in 1976. He pursued further studies at the
Rutgers University Graduate School of Business in USA and received
his Master of Business Administration in Finance in 1979. Mr. Lindsay
has 32 years’ experience in the investment banking, proprietary trading
and fund management industries. His expertise lies in areas of risk
management, product accounting, financial reporting, regulatory and
compliance and operations. From July 1980 to May 1996, Mr. Lindsay
worked for Goldman, Sachs and Co. in areas of proprietary accounting
and risk analysis, risk management, product accounting and risk analysis,
government control and mortgage backed control, business analysis,
risk management, product accounting and equities accounting. From
June 1996 to December 2003, Mr. Lindsay served as an executive vice
president and chief financial officer at Tokai Asia Limited (now known as
UFJ Investments Asia Limited). From 2004 to 2006, Mr. Lindsay worked at
Sattva Investment Advisors Limited as principal and chief financial officer.

Currently, Mr. Lindsay is the director of China Alpha Il Fund Limited,
CSI Event Fund Ltd (formerly known as China Alpha Focus Fund Ltd.),
CITIC Securities Alpha Leaders Fund Limited and China Shenghai
Investment Management Limited (“CSHIM”). He is also the director and
chief operating officer of CITIC Securities International Fund Management
Limited (“CSIFM”) and the director of the Investment Manager. Mr.
Lindsay is also appointed as director of The American Club Hong Kong
on 1 January 2011, CSI RMB Fund Limited on 18 April 2011, Next
Horizon Company Limited on 22 July 2011 and Hong Kong Securities
and Investment Institute on 7 December 2011. Commencing on 1 April
2013, he will also be a member of the HKTDC Financial Services Advisory
Committee and Steering Committee of the Asian Financial Forum 2014.
Mr. Lindsay is a licensed person for types 1, 4 and 9 regulated activities
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) and a responsible
officer of each of the Investment Manager and CSHIM.
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Mr. Wang Junyan, aged 42, Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
Mr. Wang is responsible for the management and formulation of the
Company’s overall investment objective and policies. Mr. Wang was
appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 28 July 2010 and has been
Director of the Company since 1 February 2010.

Mr. Wang completed a bachelor’s degree majoring in International Trade
from Zhongshan University (4 Ll X £) in 1992 and a master’s degree
in Finance from The University of Hong Kong in 2003. Mr. Wang has
been involved in investment banking, capital markets, direct investments
and fund management in China and Hong Kong since the early 1990s.
He has accumulated over 17 years of securities investment and asset
management experience in the region.

From August 1993 to October 1997, Mr. Wang served in various
departments in J & A Securities Limited. Before his departure, Mr. Wang
was the assistant general manager and was involved in the establishment
of its brokerage, sales and corporate finance operations in Hong Kong.

In October 1997, Mr. Wang was appointed as managing director of First
Shanghai Securities Limited (Formerly known as First Shanghai Capital
Limited) and in February 2000, he was further appointed as managing
director of First Shanghai Financial Holding Limited, a wholly-owned
financial services arm of First Shanghai Investments Limited (227.HK).
From January 2007 to June 2007, Mr. Wang was appointed as the chief
investment officer of First Shanghai Fund Management Limited.

From 1998 to December 2006, Mr. Wang was appointed as an executive
director and a member of the investment committee of China Assets
(Holdings) Limited (170.HK) (“China Assets”), an investment company
incorporated in Hong Kong and listed on the Stock Exchange. For the
period from October 2002 to January 2007, Mr. Wang was a director of
China Assets Investment Management Limited (“CAIM”). The investment
committee of China Assets was responsible for identifying the private
equity investments, overseeing the trading portfolio and evaluating the
portfolio performance.
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Currently, Mr. Wang is the director of China Alpha Il Fund Limited, CITIC
Securities Alpha Leaders Fund Limited, China Alpha Fund Management
Limited, CSIFM and the Investment Manager. On 1 November 2010,
he was appointed as Adjunct Professor in the Department of Finance of
the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He was also an independent non-
executive director of Yanzhou Coal Mining Company Limited (1171.HK),
which he resigned on 20 May 2011. Mr. Wang is an independent non-
executive director of China Aerospace International Holdings Limited (31.
HK) and LIVZON Pharmaceutical Group Co. Ltd. (000513.S2). On 28
June 2011, Mr. Wang was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Wumart Stores, Inc., of which the issued shares were listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of the Stock Exchange until the
transfer of listing from GEM to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(1025.HK) on 30 June 2011. Mr. Wang was the director of CSHIM and
CSI Event Fund Ltd. (formerly known as China Alpha Focus Fund Ltd.)
until his resignation on 15 March 2013 and 18 March 2013 respectively.
Mr. Wang was also appointed as a director of Dragon Origin Limited on
12 April 2011 and CSI RMB Fund Ltd on 18 April 2011. Mr. Wang is a
licensed person for types 4 and 9 regulated activities under the SFO and
a responsible officer of the Investment Manager.

Mr. Gu Xu, aged 48, Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Gu
completed a bachelor’s degree majoring in Economics from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics (/88 4E K2 ) in 1986. He further
received a master’s degree majoring in Economics from the same
university in 1989 and a master’s degree majoring in Business
Administration awarded jointly by Fudan University (18 B X&) and The
University of Hong Kong in 2003. Mr. Gu has accumulated 17 years’
experience in asset management, investment and financial management
in both financial conglomerate and private company. From October 2006
to May 2008, Mr. Gu was the president and partner of t /& #& & 45 &
& % 12 & [R A 7] (Create Capital Co., Ltd.) and he was responsible for
the management and investment decision making of a fund in the PRC.
Since July 2009, Mr. Gu has been acting as the director of ;i 7 &R
A E 4 EEARE TR A (Henan Agriculture Development Investment
Fund Management Limited) and is responsible for the management
and supervision of a fund named 7] [ 2 % (2% E ¥ 8 & A & (Henan
Agriculture Development Investment Fund). Since August 2010, Mr. Gu
has been serving as the general manager of 8= #E (L AIE R E AR
R & T 72 &) (Shanghai Honghua Cultural Venture Investment Company
Limited) (the “Honghua Fund”), a fund company targeting investment
in culture industry in China. He is also the general manager and director
of the investment manager of the Honghua Fund. Since July 2011, Mr.
Gu has been the executive partner of FBEBEERERETL(E
R4 {X) (Shanghai Landian Guanxi Medical Investment Centre (Limited
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Partnership)). Since December 2011, Mr. Gu has been the director of
AEREFEEEEFREBE AR AR (Bajia Maternal and Infant Health
Industry Holding Group Co., Ltd.). Mr. Gu is also the chairman of the
board of /B8R FEREEEAR AR (Shanghai Dongsheng Investment
Management Co., Ltd.). Mr. Gu was appointed as Executive Director of
the Company on 25 November 2010.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Siu Kam Chau, aged 48, Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Siu obtained a bachelor degree in accountancy from the
City University of Hong Kong in 1992. He is a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is also a certified public accountant (practising) in
Hong Kong. Mr. Siu has over 23 years of working experience in auditing,
accounting, company secretarial and corporate finance functions. He
is currently an executive director of China Gogreen Assets Investment
Limited (397.HK) and an independent non-executive director of Wang
On Group Limited (1222.HK), which shares are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Siu was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 26 July 2010.

Professor Xu Yangsheng, aged 54, Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Academy of
Engineering Sciences (&7 L1228 Fr +), Academician of International
Eurasian Academy of Sciences and an academician of Chinese Academy
of Engineering (Bl T2zt 1), Professor Xu received his PhD degree
from University of Pennsylvania, USA in 1989, and worked at Carnegie
Mellon University in USA from 1989 to 1999. In 1997, he joined The
Chinese University of Hong Kong (“CUHK”) where he is currently a
professor of Automation and Computer-Aided Engineering, and Pro-Vice-
Chancellor starting from 1 March 2011. Professor Xu’s research includes
space robotics, intelligent control and systems, and human interface.
Professor Xu has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Sun East Technology (Holdings) Limited (365.HK), a company
which shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since
May 2005. Professor Xu was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 26 July 2010.
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Mr. Doyle Ainsworth Dally, aged 66, Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Dally was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 26 July 2010. Mr. Dally
obtained a Bachelor of Science Degree from Atlantic Union College in
Massachusetts, USA in 1981 and a Master in Business Administration
from Nova Southeastern University in Florida, USA in 1992. He also
obtained the Trust and Estate Practitioner designation from the Society of
Trust and Estates Practitioners since October 1993. Mr. Dally has been
an independent non-executive director of CITIC Securities Alpha Leaders
Fund Limited since 4 March 2008.

Mr. Dally was the former managing director of Wachovia Bank And
Trust Company (Cayman) Limited from 3 February 2005, a subsidiary
of Wachovia Corporation, all of which were acquired by Wells Fargo
And Company in October 2008. As a result of such acquisition and
subsequent consolidation between entities within Wachovia Corporation
and those within Wells Fargo and Company, Mr. Dally served as a
managing director of Wells Fargo Bank And Trust Co (Cayman) Limited, a
subsidiary of Wells Fargo And Company, until 12 November 2010.

Mr. Dally served in the trust division of Bank of Butterfield International
(Cayman) Ltd for 14 years. Before his retirement in 2004, he acted as the
senior manager and head of the trust and corporate services division.
Prior to that, he was manager of the trust administration division of
Butterfield Bank in Bermuda for 9 years.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and audited financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2012 (the
“Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The Company is an exempted limited liability company, incorporated in
the Cayman lIslands on 1 February 2010 for the purpose of acting as a
closed-ended investment company.

The Company is principally engaged in investing globally in both private
and publicly listed enterprises that have demonstrated the ability to
manufacture a product or deliver a service that is supported by the
economies of the mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan.

The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange with effect from 6 January 2011 (the “Listing Date”). The

Company had not commenced any operation or business before the
Listing Date.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Company for the Year are set out in the financial
statements on pages 51 to 95.

DIVIDENDS

The board of Directors (the “Board”) does not recommend the payment of
any dividends for the Year (31 December 2011: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Company for the
Year is set out on page 96.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves during the Year are set out in the
statement of changes in equity to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital during the Year are set out in
note 19 to the financial statements.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE BE - BoOSREEXRQATRG

SHARES OF THE COMPANY

The Company did not purchase, redeem or sell any of the Company’s ~ RAEE - AARNWEET - 00 s HEARQ FEM
shares during the Year. {17 °

DIRECTORS B£E

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the date of this RAEEREEAHEAH - FFEENT
report are:

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Craig Blaser Lindsay (Chairman) Craig Blaser Lindsay ¢4 (/&)

Mr. Wang Junyan (Chief Executive Officer) FERERE(TTEAEE)

Mr. Gu Xu MBS AE

Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHTES

Mr. Siu Kam Chau Ei s

Professor Xu Yangsheng BIBAEHIR

Mr. Doyle Ainsworth Dally Doyle Ainsworth Dally %t 4

In order to comply with the requirements of the code provision A.4.2 of A& FmREIfSE 14 & 2 DESATRI([ES
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the  JA<FRI ) ZSFRMENX B A 42 BRRTE - BREAERE
Listing Rules, Mr. Gu Xu and Professor Xu Yangsheng will retire by rotation  #54#IS A A ATIEERERE AL FiRFERET -
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. The retiring  R{TE=A ER WS ERET -

Directors are eligible to offer themselves for re-election.

The biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this report are set ~ RAIRE BB 2 EEHNBREFBHNAERFE 21 225

out in the section headed “Profiles of Directors” on pages 21 to 25 of this B [EEEFE] —&h o
annual report.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS EEMWS

Details of the fee or emoluments of Directors during the Year are setoutin =~ RNEE 7 EEM S IS S EEHN G REMZES o
note 8 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation (i
any).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the “Investment Management Agreement” mentioned below,
no contracts of significance, to which the Company was a party and
in which any director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2012, none of the Directors or chief executives
of the Company had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”).
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’/OTHER
PERSON'’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

Shareholders’ Interests in Shares

As at 31 December 2012, the following person (other than the Directors
or chief executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company (the “Shares”) which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO:

Number of

Name of Substantial Shareholders Direct Interests
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TERRHtt A TRARD RAAE
Ry 2 s RIRE

RN RAD 2 5d

R2012F 12 A31 B * UM FAT(RRRESHEET
A BRRIN AR R 2 BB GS ([ R ) R+
BEBLRARBIRIEES KEEEFIEI36EFEY
FRfMARz ERTUAR

Number of
Indirect % of Issued
Interests Share Capital

EERREE EEREEBE MEEEHA GHERTRAEIR
Mr. Tam Siu Ki 30,600,000 - 10.10
RAAEAL

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, the Company has not
been notified by any other persons who had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which are required to
be recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Company had the following continuing connected
transactions, details of which were disclosued in compliance with the
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

Custodian Agreement

Pursuant to the Custodian Agreement dated 10 December 2010, the
Company appointed HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited
(the “Custodian”) as its custodian. The Custodian has agreed to provide
the Company with, among others, custodian services in respect of all
assets of the Company. The Custodian Agreement was effective on 10
December 2010 and will continue to be in force until terminated by either
the Company or the Custodian by giving the other party not less than
three months advance notice in writing.

B EXETHEESN - 12012912 A31H » KA R AE
MEFEAMEMALTREARRRDKMABERHFHES
BERAAREIREES KBS GHIFEI6HAEAFTE
ARz EmTAE -

HERERS

RAFE  ARAA MIRERERS - EAHBER
B ETARRIE 14A T 2 HRTE T IASER -

HREBEEERS

BEBHIA2010F 12 A10B R E i - AR AR
ELHBETRE(EMNERAB(FEEADATE
A BB ARBRARB B EERANRA AR (EF
BIR)EETERY - sTE RN 2010F 12 A10H 4
W W —EBAER  EEARBHAEARS—FHE
EBEBTOR=MEAZBAE TR ©



Report of the Directors
EEEWRE

Pursuant to the Custodian Agreement, the Company will pay the
Custodian a monthly fee of the higher of (a) up to 0.04% per annum of the
Company’s net asset value, or (b) HK$7,500 per month for the six month
period from the Listing Date, or HK$15,000 for each month thereafter.

During the Year, the custodian fee of HK$180,000 was paid by the
Company.

The Custodian is regarded as a connected person of the Company under
Rule 21.183 of the Listing Rules. The Directors anticipate that the fees
payable to the Custodian under the Custodian Agreement will not exceed
HK$1 million and the applicable percentage ratio calculated for the
purpose of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules will be, on an annual basis,
less than 5%. Accordingly, the Custodian Agreement constitutes a de
minimis continuing connected transaction and is exempt from, reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent shareholders approval
requirements under Rule 14A.33(3) of the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the custody service provided by the Custodian to the Company under
the Custodian Agreement constitutes an exempt continuing connected
transaction of the Company.

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

Investment Management Agreement

Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 10 December
2010, the Company appointed the Investment Manager as its investment
manager to provide the Company with investment management services
for an initial term from the Listing Date to 31 December 2012 unless
terminated by either party upon not less than 180 days’ written notice
or earlier for cause. The Investment Manager is entitled to receive from
the Company a management fee accruing monthly at the annual rate of
2% of the net asset value of the Company on each valuation date and
payable monthly in arrears. In addition, a performance fee will also be
payable by the Company to the Investment Manager. The performance
fee is payable semi-annually in arrears and is calculated at the rate of 20%
of any net appreciation (after deduction of the management fees for the
relevant period, but prior to deduction of the performance fee) in the net
asset value per share on the immediately preceding valuation date, above
the previous highest net asset value per share on any preceding valuation
date in respect of which a performance fee was last paid multiplied by the
number of shares in issue at the time of calculating the performance fee.

During the Year, the management fee of HK$4,917,512 was paid by the
Company. No performance fee was paid by the Company during the
Year.

BREE W - AAABAEEAZNAE - LT3
MENRSERE  QIEFEZALTAREEFEDN
0.04% : 2k (o) £ B A31& /<18 A HA & A 7,500 & T3k
It 1& & A 15,0007 7T °

KRARAARFE ZT7EE & 180,000/8 7T ©

BIE EWARAE21.131& - 8B ARR ARQFHEIE
AT - BEFEH  BEXEHHRENTEAZEBRE
838 1,000,000 %8 7T M3t AR RIS 14AE M S FTaT
B2EAB L ERIRFEREEERERS% « Bt - 558
BN REREFERERS  WHREET TR
BIZE14A330Q) B BEERR - FEHEH  AERBUR
RULEZHTE - At - T8 ARBEEHERUEARQR]
REMNTERGER AR RNRCHEFERS -

FRRBERERS

REEE R

BIEEHA2010F12 10BN EEEHE - AQ
RIEZAREEBEAEAEREERA  BARRR
HINEEERE - VP FHAEE LM HERE20124F
12 A31 BiE - BRIEFM—HFBEEH T L1800 R EE B
A EBERAT T ALK LE - WEEEAGERARRK
NERE  ZERARSHEBRNAREEFEN2%H
FrhhERZ AR WERESA ARSI o toh - AR
RINARKREEBASINRAE - KREBESFEFRN
ARSI REZON—GERASREEFELB L
—AEHRBENEMAI—GERNIRSEREE
FEMTAHEEFE (R AR B EIE B ARG
REB)N20% FUAGTHERRERHDZHITROEE M
FTH -

KARRAFEESNERE 4,917 512870 « XARIR
REBWALNRRE -



The Investment Manager is regarded as a connected person of the
Company under Rule 21.13 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the
service provided by the Investment Manager to the Company under the
Investment Management Agreement constituted a continuing connected
transaction of the Company.

The Investment Manager is a wholly owned subsidiary of CSIFM. Shares
in CSIFM are held by China Alpha Fund Management Ltd as to 45% and
CSIAMF (CL) Limited as to 55%. CSIAMF (CL) Limited is wholly owned
by CITIC Securities International Asset Management Limited, while China
Alpha Fund Management Ltd is wholly owned by Mr. Wang Junyan, the
chief executive officer and Director of the Company. Mr. Wang Junyan
and Mr. Craig Blaser Lindsay are Directors of both the Company and the
Investment Manager.

On 19 December 2012, the Company has entered into the Agreement
with the Investment Manager. Details of the Agreement are set out in note
26 to the financial statements and the circular of the Company dated 30
November 2012.

DIRECTORS’ OPINION ON CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In the opinion of the Directors, including the independent non-
executive Directors of the Company, the terms of and the transactions
contemplated under the Investment Management Agreement and
the Custodian Agreement have been entered into after arm’s length
negotiation, on normal commercial terms, and in the ordinary course of
business of the Company, and are fair and reasonable and in the interest
of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Company’s
non-exempt continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing the findings
and conclusions in respect of the non-exempt continuing connected
transactions disclosed above by the Company in accordance with Rule
14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Currently the Investment Manager and their directors, officers and
employees provide management services to a number of hedge funds,
mutual funds and a managed discretionary accounts with similar
investment objectives to the Company.

From time to time conflicts of interest may arise between the interest of
the Company and those of other clients. In such situations, the Investment
Manager will have regard to its obligations to the Company to act in the
best interests of the Company, so far as is practicable having regard also
to its obligations to the other clients.

Mr. Wang Junyan and Mr. Craig Lindsay are directors of the Company
and the Investment Manager and are involved in the day-to-day
operations of each of these entities. This may give rise to conflicts of
interest.

As the overall interests of the Company and Investment Manager are
aligned, the Directors are of the view that Mr. Wang and Mr. Lindsay will
be able to act in the best interests of the Company and its Shareholders.
In addition, all major decisions of each of these companies will be made
by their respective board of directors of these companies as a whole and
not at the sole discretion of Mr. Wang and/or Mr. Lindsay. In the case of
the Company, this includes the Independent Non-executive Directors and
the third Executive Director, Mr. Gu Xu.

Mr. Wang and Mr. Lindsay will maintain confidentiality in respect of the
information of each of the funds managed by the Investment Manager.
They are also aware of their obligations under the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong’s Internal Control Guidelines that they are
required to establish and ensure the integrity and security of all information
relevant to the business operations of the respective entities.
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The table below sets forth the funds/accounts currently managed by
Directors or the Investment Manager and certain details of those funds/
accounts.

Percentage of assets

under management
in new economy
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TREJNEETRREERABNEENES RFP R
ZERS /RPHETHE

Assets under

Fund/ industries (as at 31 management (as at
Managed December 2012) 31 December 2012)
account Investment Objective/ HRBTEEEEE EEERE
e Mandate LBl (74 2012 & (20124 Geographical coverage
EEEF REBEEF 128318) 12A31A8) tIEEE
Investment Manager (Funds 1 to 7 below)
REEBEA(TX1ETERES)
Craig B. LINDSAY (Funds 1 to 7 below)
Craig B. LINDSAY (TX1Z7HE$)
1 CITIC Achieving a maximum capital growth  19.35% US$117.6 million Mainly the PRC (Shanghai &
Securities through investing in securities, 1.17618% 7T Shenzhen), Hong Kong,
Alpha derivative products and related Singapore. Taiwan, the United
Leaders instruments issued by companies States (New York) and the United
Fund whose majority of their business Kingdom (London).
Limited and/or revenue is closely related F2RFPR(EFRFI) - B -

to the economic growth of the
PRC, Hong Kong, Singapore and
Taiwan. It will also invest in the
United States and United Kingdom
markets.

BBIERRED EBE R, SRA
s FE - IR LA ER
KB R B SN AR ELT
WES TEERRERTIAR
MHEAREARIGE - HIMRENSE
Bl % SB35

2 CSIRMB Fund Achieving a maximum capital growth  25.04%

Ltd through investing in securities,
fixed income products, derivative
products, foreign currencies and
related instruments issued by
either private entities or public
companies listed on recognized
stock exchanges globally.

FRRENEHRAIBFLZHH

MEFLABER AR AR AET
WES - BERAER - (TEE
M INERAERE T EEREKRE
IE(E -

Fronge - 8 - XBI(HH) kR
B (20 °

US$6.4 million
640 BETT

Global recognized stock exchanges.
2IRBAIEHFZ P
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Percentage of assets
under management
in new economy

Assets under

Fund/ industries (as at 31 management (as at
Managed December 2012) 31 December 2012)
account Investment Objective/ HRBTEEREE EEEE
2 Mandate Lb Bl (A 2012 5 (R2012% Geographical coverage
BEEF REBEZEFE 128318) 12831A8) IR EE
3 China Alphall  Achieving a maximum capital growth  8.99% US$159.8 million Mainly the PRC (Shanghai &

Fund Ltd through investing in securities, 1.598 83T Shenzhen), Hong Kong,
derivative products and related Singapore. Taiwan, the United
instruments issued by companies States (New York) and the United
whose majority of their business Kingdom (London).
and/or revenue is closely related FEAFR(EBRFI) - &F -
to the economic growth of the g - A8 - EE(ED) kK
PRC, Hong Kong, Singapore and B (fRF) -

Taiwan. It will also invest in the
United States and United Kingdom
markets.

BREERRI D EBF R TRA
BB B FTINE R A ER
KRS AR A TTET
KBS ~ OTHEEMNARR T AR
MEAREARIEE - HIMRERSE
BlsEEINE

4 China Alpha Achieving a maximum capital growth  8.99% US$17.99 million Mainly the PRC (Shanghai &
Focus Fund through investing in securities, 1,799 8 %70 Shenzhen), Hong Kong,

Ltd derivative products and related
instruments issued by companies
whose majority of their business
and/or revenue is closely related
to the economic growth of the
PRC, Hong Kong, Singapore and
Taiwan. It will also invest in the
United States and United Kingdom
markets.

BRIBERRED EB R, LBA
B - FE - IR AER
OEIR R B BB A RIPTETT
WEF  ITEERKERTIAE
M AREAILE - HIMEERE
SELEIE

Singapore. Taiwan, the United
States (New York) and the United
Kingdom (London).

TERTR(LERRI) - BE
BNk - A EE (K R
B (fmF0) °
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under management
in new economy
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Assets under

EEEHRE

Fund/ industries (as at 31 management (as at

Managed December 2012) 31 December 2012)

account Investment Objective/ HRBTEEREE EEEE

2 Mandate Lb Bl (A 2012 5 (R2012% Geographical coverage
BEEF REBEZEFE 128318) 12831A8) IR EE

5 CSlAlpha Achieving long-term appreciation of ~ 18.18% US$32.2 million Mainly Hong Kong
Fund series unit price through capital growth 3,220 83T TEAES
-Csl and income appreciation by
China - investing in a diversified portfolio
Hong Kong of at least twenty three blue chip
Leaders equities, and to a limited extent,

Fund ADRs and GDRs, that are listed

FEFAEEZE  primarily on Hong Kong stock

4 Z%|—r/{Z  exchange and/or any international

iFAFREZEAE  securities exchange and/or other

BEBES organised securities markets that
are open to the international public
and on which such securities are
regularly traded.

FRRENSZTNREES B

FBEDVIEEER - BIMEER
HEANREXHTETES ADR K
ZIR1FFL/RE (GDR) + B AR
HERBAIEINESE S EE
BORPER - %ZEEFFTER
EEBRR FEREFRZS
Fit R,/ SR A e BRI B A R
ATEEZEBFNEMEHEE
BHMB L °

6 CSlAlpha Achieving long-term appreciation of ~ 8.67% US$61.0 million The PRC (Shanghai & Shenzhen)
Fund Series unit price through capital growth 6,100 BT PRI 8RR
- CSI RMB and income appreciation by
Income investing primarily in a diversified
Fund portfolio of RMB denominated and

PEEAELYAE  settled debt instruments and RMB
©R%|—"F{=  denominated and settled equities
AHEARBUL  or equity related securities.

AEE FRFERENZTNRER
& BREAAREHEREED
BB TAURAAREHERA
HEERSERERES - AR
BAARSERBAENESESE
ERNRAEE -

7 Managed Achieving a maximum capital growth  26.22% US$215.8 million Mainly the PRC (Shanghai &
accounts through investing in securities, 215883 7T Shenzhen), Hong Kong,
managed by derivative products and related Singapore. Taiwan, the United
Investment instruments issued by companies States (New York) and the United
Manager whose majority of their business Kingdom (London).

HEEIEAEIE  and/or revenue is closely related FEAFR(EERFI) - BFE -
HEEERS to the economic growth of the M - A ZE (L) KK

PRC, Hong Kong, Singapore and
Taiwan. It will also invest in the
United States and United Kingdom
markets.

BBIERRED EB R LA
B - FE - IR RS
KB B EMEBENRARMET
RIES - OTEEMRAEB T AR
MEAEARIGE - ATMRERE
BISESE R R

BI(fm20) -
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Percentage of assets
under management
in new economy

Assets under

Fund/ industries (as at 31 management (as at

Managed December 2012) 31 December 2012)

account Investment Objective/ HRBTEEREE EEEE

2 Mandate Lb Bl (A 2012 5 (R2012% Geographical coverage
BEEF REBEZEFE 128318) 12831A8) IR EE

WANG Junyan (Funds 1 to 7 above plus the following)

IRE(EXES1ZTMUT—E)

8 Managed Achieving a maximum capital growth  13.1% US$54.4 million Mainly the PRC (Shanghai &
account through investing in securities, 5,440 83T Shenzhen), Hong Kong,
managed derivative products and related Singapore. Taiwan, the United
by China instruments issued by companies States (New York) and the United
Alpha Fund whose majority of their business Kingdom (London).
Management  and/or revenue is closely related FERFE(ERRI) - B -
Ltd to the economic growth of the g - 57 - EF(4RL) R

/A China PRC, Hong Kong, Singapore and B ()
Alpha Fund Taiwan. It will also invest in the
Management  United States and United Kingdom
Ltd EIEH) markets.
EIRERP BRITERKI D EBF R TIRA

SR A IR BB
BB R E S R RIATEIT

VES - (TEEMMAART AR
HREABAIEE - HTRARE
EIpSEE

Interests Held by Directors or Investment Manager in Other
Funds/Accounts

1. China Alpha Il Fund Ltd 7.

Mr. Craig Blaser Lindsay and Mr. Wang Junyan directly or indirectly
hold shares in China Alpha Il Fund Ltd. The table below sets forth
details of the shares held by Mr. Lindsay and Mr. Wang:

EEqREEEARAMES RENER

China Alpha Il Fund Ltd

Craig Blaser Lindsay %t & T & E St £ E# ok fH
##55China Alpha Il Fund Ltdigp&n « F&RE51
Lindsay 5c 4 2 5L P () BIFF1 -

Value of shares as a percentage of net asset
value of China Alpha Il Fund Ltd as at 31
December 2012

Shareholder Type of shares B {2 {&{E 14 China Alpha Il Fund Ltd
R=R IR A% %8 5 R2012512 831 EWEEFEED L
Mr. Lindsay Participating shares which rank pari passu to all 0.85% of participating shares

Lindsay %t 4 participating shares held by other investors 2 HF D H0.85%

28y - BEMKREEFENME2ERN
FHERASMNL

Mr. Wang and his immediate family Participating shares which rank pari passu to all

members participating shares held by other investors
TREREERFGEKE 28R - BEMIREER/RANMEL2ERD

FHERASMNL

12.65% of participating shares
2R E) 12.65%
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2. China Alpha Focus Fund Ltd 2. China Alpha Focus Fund Ltd
Mr. Wang Junyan directly or indirectly holds shares in China Alpha T & Z 5t 4 B # = E#% #5 8 China Alpha Focus
Focus Fund Ltd. The table below sets forth details of the shares Fund Ltd BUR% {7 » TR T A E R HEERE
directly or indirectly held by Mr. Wang: BRMHEFFE

Value of shares as a percentage of net asset
value of China Alpha Focus Fund Ltd as at 31

December 2012
Shareholder Type of shares MR #EfE{5 China Alpha Focus Fund Ltd
BE 1R 45 38 Bl A2012F 12 A 31 HEWEEFEE DL
Mr. Wang and his immediate family Participating shares which rank pari passu to all 39.57% of participating shares
members participating shares held by other investors ZERRHH) 39.57%
FREREEZRGKE S2ERG - BEMKREEFAENME L8R5
=ZHERSEHA
3. CITIC Securities Alpha Leaders Fund Limited 3. CITIC Securities Alpha Leaders Fund Limited
Mr. Wang Junyan indirectly holds shares in CITIC Securities Alpha T & Z 5% & B % 45 B CITIC Securities Alpha
Leaders Fund Limited. The table below sets forth details of the Leaders Fund Limited 815 o TREFINE L E
shares indirectly held by Mr. Wang: B RMDEIFHS -
Value of shares as a percentage of net asset
value of CITIC Securities Alpha Leaders Fund
Limited as at 31 December 2012
Shareholder Type of shares B 13 {E{E 1L CITIC Securities Alpha Leaders Fund
RR IR 45 38 Bl Limited A 2012 £ 12 A 31 HEWEEZRER S
China Alpha Fund Management Ltd, a Participating shares which rank pari passu to all 1.00% of participating shares
company wholly owned by Mr. Wang participating shares held by other investors 2ERHH1.00%
FhAEZEHEHB AT China Alpha 28R - BEMKREEFANNE 28RN
Fund Management Ltd ESYEE:S: v
CSIAM (CL) Investments Limited, an Participating shares which rank pari passu to all 99.00% of the participating shares
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of participating shares held by other investors SRR H) 99.00%
CITIC Securities Co., Ltd, which is 2R - BEMKEEFFHOAE 28RN
the indirect controlling shareholder of ZHEREHAL

the Investment Manager
FPIEIFFROER D FINEEDSEH
A HiE 2 F CSIAM (CL) Investments
Limited » F{EREAARMBR AR5
HEEE AR EEERRE

CITIC Securities International Fund In its capacity as the fund manager, 100% of management shares
Management Limited, a company in management shares with no economic rights EIZER(D ) 100%
which Mr. Wang indirectly holds 45%  {ERESLE S - BIR @M B R
CITIC Securities International Fund
Management Limited » T 45 A4 5
55 45% HER AR

Note: Participating shares are redeemable shares with economic rights but no voting — Fifst : 2B A A B A B EIAR Y - &R - IWa]

right and may be acquired by investors in the respective funds. Management HEESHRELEEE - EEEBRNDABIRERE - T
shares are voting, non-participating, non-redeemable shares with no economic COEER N 28 - RalERIRY - WEARZESNE
rights and may only be held by the fund manager of that fund. SRIBHEAR ©
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4, CSI China — Hong Kong Leaders Fund

CSIAM (CL) Investments Limited is the seed investor in CSI China
— Hong Kong Leaders Fund, a sub-fund of the CSI Alpha Fund
Series. CSIAM (CL) Investments Limited is an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of CITIC Securities Co., Ltd, which is the indirect
controlling shareholder of the Investment Manager.

As at 31 December 2012, the value of the units held by CSIAM (CL)
Investments Limited accounted for 85.66% of the net asset value of
CSI China — Hong Kong Leaders Fund. These units rank pari passu
to all units held by other investors.

5. CSI RMB Income Fund

CITIC Securities Alpha Leaders Fund Limited is an investor in CSI
RMB Income Fund, a sub-fund of the CSI Alpha Fund Series.
99.00% of the participating shares of CITIC Securities Alpha
Leaders Fund Limited is owned by CSIAM (CL) Investment Limited,
which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CITIC Securities
Co., Ltd. Dragon Stream Investments Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of CITIC Securities Co., Ltd, and CITIC Securities
International Company Limited, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of
CITIC Securities Co., Ltd, are also the investors in CSI RMB Income
Fund.

As at 31 December 2012, the value of the units held by CITIC
Securities Alpha Leaders Fund Limited, Dragon Stream Investments
Limited and CITIC Securities International Company Limited
accounted for 16.75%, 7.71% and 1.16% of the net asset value of
CSI RMB Income Fund, respectively. These units rank pari passu to
all units held by other investors.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights in respect of the shares of
the Company under the Articles of Association of the Company although
there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws of Cayman
Islands.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Save as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 40 to
48, the Company has complied with all applicable code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the Year and up to the date of this
report.

4. HIEUFFEEEEERES

CSIAM (CL) Investments Limited A&/ {2 E 5= L
BRI TFESPEIHFTRESEEESHNE
&% - CSIAM (CL) Investments Limited &9
EHERHBBERARNEEZEEZEHREWNB AR
FEIIHFERDER AR ARETEANBEZR
BRER o

® 2012412 A31 B * CSIAM (CL) Investments
Limited B B A BEE T IELEFREEERE
BEHESEEFEMNSS.66% sz FEMNEH MY
BEFBENE BN ZE RSN o

5 HIEHFAREMRAED

CITIC Securities Alpha Leaders Fund Limited
RAGIFREEERFRINFESHEIFAR
UG AN E & M) & #& - CITIC Securities Alpha
Leaders Fund Limited 2 £ B2 )& 1) 2 99.00% E
CSIAM (CL) Investment Limited# % * 1 CSIAM
(CL) Investment Limited & EiEHFH AR A
AMEZE2ERBERB AR - RIEILHFRHE
RN &) 8 e 2 & % 6 I8 A 7] Dragon Stream
Investments Limited & 15 fiE 55810 AR A R1HY
BEEHRAZENBARPEELFRBEERARTIN
RPEEFARBRAESHRES -

72012412 A 31 H * [ CITIC Securities Alpha
Leaders Fund Limited » Dragon Stream
Investments Limited & 15 & 5 BB B R A A1
BNEBEMBESIMEFEIEFARBRAESE
ESFEMN16.75% 7.71% & 1.16% ° 2581
HtREERENME B A RS -

BrBEERE

BARAFEHBSEV L BT FELEERRSY - ARF
ZHABERARNTEFREARRRNMNELEEEN
3 o

EEER

BREE40EF 48 AKX EAREMEESES » ARFR
AEFHEERRE R —FET EMRAMER14P7EH
ZEEERSTRI(TREEASTRI DB FrEE R <A &
7o



AUDITORS

Ernst & Young will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after 31 December 2012 are set out
in Note 26 to the finance statements.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 December 2012, the Company had no employees but three
Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors.
Details of the fees or emoluments of directors in respect of their services
rendered to the Company during the Year are set out in note 8 to
the financial statements. The Company does not have a share option
scheme.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules as at the date of
this report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors. Having made
specific enquiry to all the Directors of the Company, all the Directors
confirmed that they have complies with the required standard of dealings
as set out in the Model Code throughout the Year and up to the date of
this annual report.

On behalf of the Board

China New Economy Fund Limited

Craig Blaser Lindsay
Chairman
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is committed to
maintaining a good corporate governance standard. The Board believes
that a good corporate governance standard will provide a framework
for the Company to formulate the business strategies and policies, and
manage the associated risks through effective internal control procedures.
It will also enhance the transparency of the Company and strengthen the
accountability to the shareholders and creditors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied most of the principles set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (The “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). The Board is of the
view that throughtout the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company
was in compliance with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code,
save and except for code provision A.4.1 which states that the Non-
executive Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election.

None of the existing Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company is appointed for a specific term. However, one third of the
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company for the time being
shall retire by rotation (provided that every Independent Non-executive
Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years) and
be eligible for re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company.
As such, even though each Independent Non-executive Director is not
appointed for a specific term, his term of office is the period up to his
retirement by rotation which is in accordance with code provision A.4.2 of
the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code of Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for dealing in securities
of the Company by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry to all
the Directors of the Company, all the Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standard of dealings as set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2012.

ARREFE((BEFR NBNERRKFNEERER

R EEEHE SKFNEEERAREAIR/AR

AR M HIRT IR MR ARM - WALE BB R
AEREE R P E R AR - RN TARSAXEN
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Z EmRA R R DR 814 prEt B AT Rl
([RERTADAMEZ KED RA - BE 20124
12 A1 HILBEFE  EFERR  ARRETEE
BASTRIPTEST RIS - ST ANRCE A4 IRAREIE
PITEFRTREEDRBRETERSERI -
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises six members,
three of which are Executive Directors, namely Mr. Craig Blaser
Lindsay who is the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Wang Junyan, who is
the Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Gu Xu. The other three members
are Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Siu Kam Chau,
Professor Xu Yangsheng and Mr. Doyle Ainsworth Dally. There is no
relationship (including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship)among members of the Board. The biographical details of the
Directors are set out in the section headed “Profiles of Directors” on pages
21 to 25 of this annual report.

The Board held 4 regular meetings during the year ended 31 December
2012. The Board is responsible, inter alia, for establishing the investment
objective and policies of the Company, complying with the Company’s
investment restrictions, for monitoring the Company’s performance and
for the appointing, supervising, directing and, if necessary, removing any
of the Company’s service providers, including the Investment Manager.

Composition of the Board, including names of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, is disclosed in all corporate communications to
shareholders of the Company.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information and accounts
of the Company. The Directors may seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the expense of the Company. The
Company will, upon request, provide separate independent professional
advice to the Directors to assist them to discharge their duties to the
Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Company’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. Directors of the
Board take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company. All
directors, including Independent Non-executive Directors, have brought
a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
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The Board reserves for its decision in making major matters relating
to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of directors and
other significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities
relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-
ordinating the daily operation and management of the Company are
delegated to the management.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has arranged in-house trainings for Directors in the form of
seminar and provision of training materials. A summary of training received
by Directors during the year ended 31 December 2012 according to the
records provided by the Directors is as follows:

Name of Directors

EFXEQRARETIRLERERE
KA RFEH - REEELARER - EARS (LKA
BRESNEERER/N)  UHEHN  REESERAR
AEMEALEEE - ERATESTRE  HFER
BRAARTNEELEREE BENEXTERRE -

BERSREEREE

ESCRESERRE

RAREEZBESL2HEBEIELR  UEERE
FIWEZ BN - ARRIEAEELHIE
WA EEFREEIER ZAIPF - BRIFEFATIE
M08 HE2012F12A31AILFE » ESCET
FIEHIBEZE T -

Training on corporate governance,
regulatory development

and other relevant topics

BREEER EERRERAEHEBEEERNEI

BEEnE

Executive Directors HITES

Craig Blaser Lindsay Craig Blaser Lindsay
Wang Junyan THRE

Gu Xu BB

Independent Non-executive Directors BFHITES

Siu Kam Chau TN

Professor Xu Yangsheng BBEHE

Doyle Ainsworth Dally Doyle Ainsworth Dally

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Craig Blaser Lindsay is the Chairman of the Company and Mr.
Wang Junyan is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. They have
segregated and clearly defined roles. The Chairman provides leadership
for the Board. The Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for the
Company’s business development and daily management generally.

<

<

FRRTHRAR

Craig Blaser Lindsay %t £ AR A FIEF » MEEE%
FRBARDNRITRAE - HEr D ERER T HEE
Do EFBREEEESTE - THEZNBELARRE
BERN—RBEEEE -




INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the Board
has three Independent Non-executive Directors, one of whom has
appropriate professional qualifications on accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Company has received a written confirmation
of independence from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Directors established the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established
with defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Board committees are made available to the shareholders on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

All members of each Board committee are Independent Non-executive
Directors and the list of the chairman and members of each Board
committee is set out in the section headed “Corporate Information” on
page 2 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The primary audit related duties of the committee are to provide the Board
with an independent review of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management system of the Company, to
oversee the audit process and to perform other duties and responsibilities
as assigned by the Board. The Audit Committee shall hold not less than
two meetings a year and shall meet with the external auditors twice
without the presence of the Executive Directors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the annual results of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2012.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The primary remuneration related duties of the committee include (but
without limitation): (i) making recommendations to the Directors on the
Company’s policy and structure of all remuneration of the Directors and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policies on such remuneration; (i) determining the terms of the specific
remuneration package of the Directors and senior management; and (i)
reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration by reference
to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Directors from time to
time. The Remuneration Committee shall hold at least one meeting a year.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 9 March 2012
with written terms of reference in accordance with code provision A.5 of
the CG Code.

The primary nomination related duties of the committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and making
recommendation to the Board on the proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, developing and
formulating relevant procedures for the nomination and appointment of
directors, making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession planning for directors, and
assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors.
The Nomination Committee shall hold at least one meeting a year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions as set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. The
Board shall review the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, training and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of
the Model Code and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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DIRECTORS’ RE-ELECTION

Code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code states that every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

The circular to shareholders of the Company with notice of the annual
general meeting contains biographical details of all the Directors proposed
1o be re-elected at the meeting to enable shareholders of the Company to
make an informed decision on re-election of Directors.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the remuneration paid or
payable to the independent auditors, Emnst & Young, for services rendered
in respect of audit services and non-audit services are HK$148,000 and
HK$188,500, respectively.

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT MEETINGS

The attendance of individual members of the Board and other Board
Committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held
during the year ended 31 December 2012 is set out in the table below:
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Meeting attended/held
HEEERY/ ey
Annual Other
Audit Remuneration Nomination General General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting Meeting
Exe  BNZEE  FMZEE REZEE RRAFAE HitRRAEg
Executive Directors BiTES

Mr. Craig Blaser Lindsay Craig Blaser Lindsay 74 4/4 - - - il 11
Mr. Wang Junyan ThERE 34 - - - 11 o1
Mr. GuXu sk 4/4 - - - 17 1/1

Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHITES
Mr. Siu Kam Chau BHNEE 4/4 22 11 il il 11
Professor Xu Yangsheng RRERR 34 2/2 15 1 0/1 1
Mr. Doyle Ainsworth Dally Doyle Ainsworth Dally %4 4/4 212 N 1 1 il

Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, the independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views
of shareholders. One Executive Director and one Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company were unable to attend a general
meeting and the annual general meeting of the Company held on 18
December 2012 and 7 June 2012 respectively due to various work
commitments.
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Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held meeting
with the Independent Non-executive Directors without the presence of
executive Directors during the year ended 31 December 2012.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements which gives a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
for each financial year and to present the interim results, annual financial
statements, and related announcements to shareholders.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 49 to 50.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the internal control of the Company and for
reviewing its effectiveness, including the adequacy of resources, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function.

The internal control are reviewed and assessed on an on-going basis by
the Board, and will be further reviewed and assessed at least once each
year by the Board.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convening extraordinary
general meeting

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law (2012
Revision). However, shareholders are requested to follow Article 25.3
of the Articles of Association of the Company. Pursuant to article 25.3
of the Articles of Association of the Company, general meetings shall
be convened on the written requisition of any two or more members of
the Company specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the
requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists hold as at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than ten per cent in the Net Asset Value
of the shares of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. If the Board does not within 21 days from the
date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting
to be held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or
any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the
Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months after the 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the
Company.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for election as a
director of the Company are laid down in Article 34.3 of the Company’s
Articles of Association. No person other than a Director retiring at the
meeting shall, unless recommended by the Board for election, be eligible
for election as a Director at any general meeting unless a notice in writing
of the intention to propose such person for election as a Director, signed
by a shareholder (other than the person to be proposed for election as
a Director) duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which
such notice is given, and a notice in writing signed by such person of
his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the registered
office of the Company. The minimum length of the period during which
such notices are given shall be at lease seven (7) days and the period for
lodgement of such notices shall commence on the day after the dispatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end
no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting.
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PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for the
attention of company secretary, by fax: (852) 2530-0727, or mail to 17/F,
Chuang’s Tower, 30-32 Connaught Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings or other
general meetings to communicate with the shareholders and encourage
their participation. The Chairman of the Board and Chairman of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee wiill
make themselves available at the annual general meeting to meet with the
shareholders and answer their enquiries.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.chinaneweconomyfund.com, where up-to-date information and
updates on the Company’s financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for public access.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, the Company has not made changes to its
Articles of Association. An up-to-date version of the Company’s Articles
of Association is also available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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Ell ERNST & YOUNG
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To the shareholders of China New Economy Fund Limited
(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability)

We have audited the financial statements of China New Economy Fund
Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 51 to 95, which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012, and the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity
and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BIZEEMRE

-

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31 December 2012, and of the
Company’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

21 March 2013
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
EHEHKER

Year ended 31 December 2012 & FE 20124 12 A31 HILFE

31 December 31 December
2012 2011
20124 20114
12A31H 12HA31H
Notes HK$ HK$
B7E BT BT
REVENUE 'ON 5 2,359,868 7,824
Net change in fair value of financial RATEE BB
assets and liabilities at fair value ZEMEERARE
through profit or loss Z AV ELZE)FEE 6 13,407,359 (39,407,708)
Other operating expenses Hih B (9,585,793) (9,698,550)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BB ATER,(EE) 7 6,181,434 (49,098,434)
Income tax expenses SRz 11 (1,373,114) -
PROFIT/(LOSS) AND TOTAL AATEBERS
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) BaE ARG
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE EREN(BR)R
TO ORDINARY EQUITY 2EWRE (R EE
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 4,808,320 (49,098,434)
EARNING/(LOSS) PER SHARE AATEBRESEHEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EhER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY BRI, (EE) 12
- Basic — &K 0.02 (0.16)
— Diluted —8E 0.02 (0.16)




Statement of Financial Position

BRI 2R

31 December 2012 20124 12 A31 H

2012 2011
201245 2011

Notes HK$ HK$
MI5E BT BT

CURRENT ASSETS RBEE

Prepayments and other receivables TEAT FRIE K R URIR 13 716,937 582,448

Financial assets at fair value BATEBERIBEYER 14 168,603,309 26,850,106

through profit or loss ZEmEE

Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEE 15 76,400,468 211,661,841

Total current assets MEVEERE 245,720,714 239,094,395

CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE

Other payables H AT 50E 16 745,329 322,929

Amount due to a related company JE —EIRE R A 17 414,986 392,501

Total current liabilities mEaERE 1,160,315 715,430

NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 244,560,399 238,378,965

NON-CURRENT LIABILITY kFRBEE

Deferred tax liabilities FERIEE E 18 1,373,114 -

Net assets BEFE 243,187,285 -

EQUITY e

Issued capital BEITRRA 19 30,300,000 30,300,000

Reserves i 212,887,285 208,078,965

Total equity RESAE 243,187,285 238,378,965

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE BREEFRE 20 0.80 0.79

Director Director
EZE E




Statement of Changes in Equity
EREER

Year ended 31 December 2012 & FE 20124 12 A31 HILFE

Issued Share Accumulated
capital premium losses Total
BRITRE RIEE 2 EE Fohy
Note HK$ HKS HKS$ HK$
iz BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2011 ®2011%F1A1H - - (555,377) (555,377)
Issue of shares by placing FBEERTRA 19 30,300,000 281,790,000 - 312,090,000
Share placement expenses BB ERY - (24,057,224) - (24,057,224)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FAZEEBREE - - (49,098,434)  (49,098,434)
At 31 December 2011 R2011E12 318 30,300,000 257,732,776" (49,653,811 238,378,965
At 1 January 2012 20121 A1H 30,300,000 257,732,776  (49,653,811) 238,378,965
Total comprehensive income for the year FRNEEKRAE - - 4,808,320 4,808,320
At 31 December 2012 2012412 A31A 30,300,000 257,732,776*  (44,845491) 243,187,285

* These reserve accounts comprise the reserves of HK$212,887,285 (2011:  * ZEFEBERBBEVBIAR A R#E 212,887,285 7T
HK$208,078,965) in the statement of financial position. (20114 : 208,078,965 8 7T) °




Statement of Cash Flows
BERERX

Year ended 31 December 2012 & ZE 20124 12 A31 HIEFE

2012 2011
2012F 20114
Notes HK$ HK$
fisE B BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES CETBHMEZRERE
Profit/(loss) before tax BEtALER/ (F8) 6,181,434 (49,098,434)
Adjustments for: FATEERE
Bank interest income FATFISIMA 5 (89,367) (7,824)
Payments for purchase of financial BERATERAERIIE ER

assets and settlement of financial liabilities BEREERLTEEREE

at fair value through profit o loss SR S RBENT (225,325,026) (107,517,581)
Proceeds from sale of financial assets HERNTEERERIE,

at fair value through profit o loss EREEMSHE 96,979,182 41,259,767
Net realized loss on financial assets BATERBRERIIEL

at fair value through profit or loss CREEEREEE 6 14,916,621 778,960
Net unrealized (gain)/loss on financial assets BATERRER)R S8

at fair value through profit or loss BEREBR (W) /BERFE 6 (27,838,630) 40,862,135
Net realized gain on financial liabilities BATEERERT K2R

at fair value through profit or loss BENEENFE 6 (485,350) (2,233,387)

(135,661,136) (75,956,364)
Increase in prepayments and other receivables BAFIR R YA M (107,280) (581,864)
Decrease in prepaid listing expenses B LAY - 24,057,317
Increase/(decrease) in other payables HivERzoEEm/ (hd) 422,400 (19,049,388)
Increase/(decrease) in an amount due to a related company EN—REEEARZAEE N/ (h)) 22,485 (4,847,876)
Cash used in operations BETHMALE (135,323,531) (76,378,175)
Interest received BUH & 62,158 7,240
Net cash flows used in operating activities SEEYMACRENEFE (135,261,373) (76,370,935)
CASH FLOWS FROM A FINANCING ACTIVITY RETBEZRERE
Proceeds from issue of shares and net BROBTRGRERRBELD

cash flows from a financing activity g RemERE 19 - 288,032,776
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH BERBLSEGY)/

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BIFE (135,261,373) 211,661,841
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FReLHRLEE 211,661,841 -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR EXAERBLERE 76,400,468 211,661,841
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH BERRSERLERIN

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank FIRE 15 537,159 3,664,389

Short-term time deposits with maturity SAREIR=EA

of less than three months 2R 15 75,863,309 207,997,452
76,400,468 211,661,841




2.1

CORPORATION INFORMATION

China New Economy Fund Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 1 February 2010 under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability. The Company was established for the purpose
of acting as a closed-ended investment company.

The Company’s registered office address is P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the
Company is at 17/F, Chuang’s Tower, 30-32 Connaught Road
Central, Central, Hong Kong.

The principal investment objective of the Company is to achieve
long-term capital appreciation through investing globally in both
private and public enterprises that have demonstrated the ability to
manufacture a product or deliver a service that is supported by the
economies of Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan.

The Company’s investment activities are managed by CITIC
Securities International Investment Management (HK) Limited (the
“Investment Manager”).

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and the
disclosure requirements of Appendix 16 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for the financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which have been
measured at fair values. These financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“‘HK$") except when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to Financial Statements
g S EU I

31 December 2012 2012412 A31 H

NEEHR

PEIFHCEREAR AR ARRRDREHSE
BERREN2010E2 A1 BEREBEE MK
A—ERREREI AR - NARJEN AH
FIEE QA -

RAFFEMEERMIEA P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, South Church Street, George Town,
Grand Cayman KY1-1104, Cayman Islands ° 7ZX
RNAEFEEEMIREBFIRTHET 30-325%
HEREATE

ARFEBRE R B BEBRE DA LE
RIRGUER BN - B8 ORFIR QSRR
ZEMIMIBZIARRREE - MBEEHE
AHEE -

ARRIMREES R EIEFBERRETR(E
BIERRARI(REEEANDEREHE -

mBLE

W ERBRER HRBEREHERNZ & (K
SEHERIZR B E )R 2 BB RS 2R ([
R IRERER DARBEHERSABERAR
(M2 pr])EH ETRRIM 16K ERE MR
o BRERATFEEBERIIRceREERAR

BERAFEFEIN - MBEREDIRIEE L KAE
R - BRRBEBIN - WFEMBREABT(E
DE]I




Notes to Financial Statements
B ISR IR M A

31 December 2012 20124 12 A31 H

2.2

2.3

-

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the
previous financial year, except for the following amendments to
IFRSs effective as of 1 January 2012:

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
Assets

The amendment requires additional disclosure about financial
assets that have been transferred but not derecognized to enable
the user of the Company’s financial statements to understand the
relationship with those assets that have not been derecognized
and their associated liabilities. In addition, the amendment
requires disclosures about the entity’s continuing involvement in
derecognized assets to enable the users to evaluate the nature
of, and risks associated with, such involvement. The amendment
is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.
The Company does not have any assets with these characteristics
so there has been no effect on the presentation of its financial
statements.

STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet
effective, up to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial
statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt
these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

IAS 1 Presentation of Iltems of Other Comprehensive Income —
Amendments to IAS 1

The amendments to IAS 1 change the grouping of items presented
in other comprehensive income. Items that could be reclassified
(or ‘recycled’) to profit or loss at a future point in time would be
presented separately from items that will never be reclassified. The
amendment affects presentation only and has no impact on the
Company’s financial position or performance. The amendment
becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2012. The Company expects to adopt the amendments from 1
January 2013.
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2.3 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE (Continued)

IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities —
Amendments to IAS 32

These amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a
legally enforceable right to set-off”. The amendments also clarify
the application of the IAS 32 offsetting criteria to settlement
systems (such as central clearing house systems) which apply
gross settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. These
amendments are not expected to impact the Company’s financial
position or performance and become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

IFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities — Amendments to IFRS 7

These amendments require an entity to disclose information
about rights to set-off and related arrangements (e.g., collateral
agreements). The disclosures would provide users with information
that is useful in evaluating the effect of netting arrangements on
an entity’s financial position. The new disclosures are required for
all recognized financial instruments that are set off in accordance
with IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. The disclosures
also apply to recognized financial instruments that are subject to
an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement,
irrespective of whether they are set off in accordance with IAS
32. These amendments will not impact the Company’s financial
position or performance and become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement

IFRS 9, as issued, reflects the first phase of the IASB’s work
on the replacement of IAS 39 and applies to classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities as defined
in IAS 39. The standard was initially effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013, but Amendments to IFRS
9 Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures,
issued in December 2011, moved the mandatory effective date to 1
January 2015. In subsequent phases, the IASB will address hedge
accounting and impairment of financial assets. The adoption of the
first phase of IFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and
measurement of the Company'’s financial assets, but will not have
an impact on classification and measurements of financial liabilities.
The Company will quantify the effect in conjunction with the other
phases, when the final standard including all phases is issued.
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2.3 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET

B BB & R AE M BV 2R ()

2.3

EFFECTIVE (Continued)

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, |AS 27 Separate
Financial Statements

IFRS 10 replaces the portion of IAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that addresses the accounting for
consolidated financial statements. It also addresses the issues
raised in SIC-12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities and I1AS
27 (2011). IFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies
to all entities including special purpose entities. The changes
introduced by IFRS 10 will require management to exercise
significant judgement to determine which entities are controlled and
therefore are required to be consolidated by a parent, compared
with the requirements that were in IAS 27.

The amendments to IFRS 10 issued in October 2012 include a
definition of an investment entity and provide an exception to the
consolidation requirement for entities that meet the definition of an
investment entity. Investment entities are required to account for
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with
IFRS 9 rather than consolidate them. Consequential amendments
were made to IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities. The
amendments to IFRS 12 also set out the disclosure requirements
for investment entities.

Consequential amendments were made to IAS 27 and IAS 28
as a result of the issuance of IFRS 10, IFRS 11 Joint Venture
Arrangement and IFRS 12. The Company expects to adopt IFRS
10, IFRS 11, IFRS 12, IAS 27 (2011), IAS 28 (2011), and the
subsequent amendments to these standards issued in June and
October 2012 from 1 January 2013. Based on the preliminary
analyses performed, IFRS 10 is not expected to have any impact on
the currently held investments of the Company.
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2.3 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE (Continued)

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and single source
of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use
across IFRSs. The standard does not change the circumstances
in which the Company is required to use fair value, but provides
guidance on how fair value should be applied where its use is
already required or permitted under other IFRSs. The Company
expects to adopt IFRS 13 prospectively from 1 January 2013.

Annual Improvements May 2012

These improvements will not have an impact on the Company, but
include:

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

This improvement clarifies the difference between voluntary
additional comparative information and the minimum required
comparative information. Generally, the minimum required
comparative information is the previous period.

IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation

This improvement clarifies that income taxes arising from
distributions to equity holders are accounted for in accordance with
IAS 12 Income Taxes.

IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting

The amendment aligns the disclosure requirements for total
segment assets with total segment liabilities in interim financial
statements. This clarification also ensures that interim disclosures
are aligned with annual disclosures.

These improvements are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Financial instruments
(a) Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets and financial
liabilities into the following categories in accordance with IAS
39.

(i) Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

The category of financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through the profit or loss is sub-divided into:

Financial assets and liabilities held for trading:

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling and/or
repurchasing in the near term. This category includes
equity securities. These assets are acquired principally
for the purpose of generating a profit from short-term
fluctuation in price. Financial liabilities are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling in the near term. All derivatives and liabilities
from short sales of financial instruments are classified
as held for trading. The Company’s policy is not to
apply hedge accounting.

Financial instruments designated as at fair value
through profit or loss upon initial recognition:

Financial assets and financial liabilities classified in
this category are those that have been designated
by management on initial recognition. Management
may only designate an instrument at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition when the following
criteria are met, and designation is determined on an
instrument by instrument basis:

° The designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or
liabilities or recognising gains or losses on them
on a different basis.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
(a) Classification (Continued)

() Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (Continued)

o The assets and liabilities are part of a group of
financial assets, financial liabilities or both which
are managed and their performance evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment
strategy.

° The financial instrument contains one or more
embedded derivatives which significantly modify
the cash flows that otherwise would be required
by the contract.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. The Company
includes in this category amounts relating to short-term
receivables.

(i) - Other financial liabilities

This category includes all financial liabilities, other than
those classified as held for trading. The Company
includes in this category amounts relating to other
payables and the amount due to a related company.

(b) Recognition

The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial
liability when, and only when, it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Recognition (Continued)

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way
trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that
the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Initial measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in the statement of financial
position at fair value. All transaction costs for these
instruments are recognized directly in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables and financial liabilities (other than
those classified as held for trading) are measured initially at
their fair value plus any directly attributable incremental costs
of acquisition or issue.

Subsequent measurement

After initial measurement, the Company measures financial
instruments which are classified as at fair value through profit
or loss at fair value. Subsequent changes in the fair value of
those financial instruments are recorded in “Net change in
fair value of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss”. Interest earned and dividend revenue elements
of these instruments are recorded separately in “Interest
income” and “Dividend income”, respectively.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortized cost using the
effective interest method less any allowance for impairment.
Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the
loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well
as through the amortization process.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial liabilities, other than those classified as at fair
value through profit or loss, are measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses
are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognized, as well as through the amortization process.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Company estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instruments,
but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees paid or received between parties to the
contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognized where:

o The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o The Company has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
(e) Derecognition (Continued)

o Either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset (or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement), and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the
extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset.
In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Company has retained.

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when the
obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position, if and only if,
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Determination of fair value

The fair value for financial instruments traded in active markets at
the reporting date is based on their quoted price or binding dealer
price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short
positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a financial
asset or a group of financial assets classified as loans and
receivables is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is an objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss
event”) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtor is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that it will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization and, where observable data indicate that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses
that have not yet been incurred) discounted using the asset’s
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount
of the loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income for all interest-bearing financial instruments
using the effective interest method.

Dividend income and expense

Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive
the payment is established. Dividend income is presented net of
any non-recoverable withholding taxes. Dividend expense relating
to equity securities sold short is recognized when the shareholders’
right to receive the payment is established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TES:TEEHE(E)

POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties BES
A party is considered to be related to the Company if; ETAERT - FRATEHERAERNATHE R
38
(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s @ BEAE—BALHZALIZBEERIX
family and that person BERXE - AL
() has control or joint control over the Company; ()  dEFIs R IR
(i) has significant influence over the Company; or iy HEARBBERTE: Ik
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the (i) AERRRIARRFRARNEEE
Company or a parent of the Company; BAEMER—FKE
or 54
(o) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions by HBHEFAERE BMEATEEHE
applies:
()  the entity and the Company are members of the same () ZEBERAARBR-SENKE
group; AT
(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other iy —(AERAS —TEMNBLAFN
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of BETE (A —BEEBNTAR
the other entity); WEBARIKRRHBAR)
(i) the entity and the Company are joint ventures of the (i) ZEEBERARFHAER-—F=7K
same third party; BEME
(v)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vv —EAEEZEREF=-FEENGZD
other entity is an associate of the third entity; ¥ MR —ERAZE-FEERN
NS
(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the v) EEEAAQNFX—REARQNAAF
benefit of employees of either the Company or an entity FENERELE 8 B9EF M R a0 B
related to the Company; BAEFIEE
(v the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person Vi) FZEBRX(FTABIALTERSREE
identified in (a); and HEES K&
(viil  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (i) REOFTEIATEHZEBEEAY
over the entity or is a member of the key management EyBEZER(AZEREAR)E
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). EEBMABNER—ZKE -



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Share capital

The Company’s ordinary shares are classified as equity as the
Company has full discretion on repurchasing the shares and on
dividend distributions.

Issuance and acquisition of ordinary shares are accounted for as
equity transactions.

Upon issuance of shares, the consideration received is included in
equity.

Transaction costs incurred by the Company in issuing or acquiring
its own equity instruments are accounted for as a deduction
from equity to the extent that they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction that otherwise would have
been avoided.

Own equity instruments which are acquired are deducted from
equity and accounted for at amounts equal to the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs.

No gain or loss is recognized in the statement of comprehensive
income on the purchase, sale, issuance or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments.

Dividend distributions

Dividend distributions are at the discretion of the Company. A
dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is accounted
for as a deduction from retained earnings. An interim dividend
is recognized directly as a liability when they are proposed and
declared by the Directors. A final dividend is recognized as a liability
in the period in which it is approved by the annual general meeting
of shareholders.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and short-
term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

TESHTHREMEGE)

24

POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognized
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in profit
or loss.

Income tax
Cayman Islands

Under the current Cayman Islands law, there are no income tax,
corporation tax, capital gains tax or any other kinds of tax on
profits or gains or tax in the nature of estate duty or inheritance tax
currently in effect.

Hong Kong

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

PRC

Investment income and capital gain may be subject to withholding
tax deducted at the source of the income. For the statement of cash
flows, cash flows from investments are presented net of withholding
taxes, when applicable.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TES:TEEHE(E)

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognized to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Functional and presentation currency

The Company’s functional and presentation currency is Hong Kong
dollar, which is the currency of the primary economic environment
in which it operates. The Company’s performance is evaluated and
its liquidity is managed in Hong Kong dollars. Therefore, Hong Kong
dollar is considered as the currency that most faithfully represents
the economic effects of the underlying transactions, events and
conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency translations

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at
the reporting date. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognized in profit or loss. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the
initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising from
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss is also recognized in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

Foreign currency transactions gains and losses on financial
instruments classified as at fair value through profit or loss are
included in profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income
as part of the “Net change in fair value of financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss”. Foreign exchange
differences on other financial instruments are included in profit
or loss in the statement of comprehensive income as “Foreign
exchange gain/loss, net”.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS,
ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS,
ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
(Continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial
statements:

Going concern

The Company’s management has made an assessment of the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concem and is satisfied that the
Company has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable
future. Furthermore, management is not aware of any material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the financial statements
continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements
were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions
about future developments may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. These
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex
tax regulations and changes in tax laws on foreign withholding
tax. Given the wide range of international investments, differences
arising between the actual investment income and the assumptions
made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate
future adjustments to tax expense already recorded. The Company
establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible
consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective
jurisdiction in which it invests. The amounts of these provisions are
based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits
and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity
and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation
may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions
prevailing in the respective domicile of investments.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REHIFTER
During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, all of HE2012F X201 F12A31ALLFE - FT B
the Company’s investments are equity securities listed either RABINRE T BRIGERZ AT « MFEAERZ ST
on the Stock Exchange, the New York Stock Exchange or the EHE2BFEFRIEHE EEBRERH(HETE
National Association of Securities Dealers Automated Quotations ) F TR ES MR ITINEESZ SER
(“NASDAQ”), and debt securities listed on the Singapore Exchange RNEFFT)) EMMERES - REEER -
Securities Trading Limited (“SGX”). For management purposes, the AARABA—EEFBLEEHE - TSRERER
Company is organised into one main operating segment, which REBES - KATINA RSB B -
invests mainly in equity and debt securities. All of the Company’s EEEIIREN EAIESR) - Eit - FREEX &7%
activities are interrelated, and each activity is dependent on the SRR ERARRWEE—BD IO - Z9E6
other. Accordingly, all significant operating decisions are based upon M TS AR E RN SRR ES -
analysis of the Company as one segment. The financial results from
this segment are equivalent to the financial statements as a whole.

5. REVENUE 5. WA
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WAL

2012 2011

20124 2011 4F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Dividend income from listed equity securities i z5E A A% B UL A 1,367,161 -
Interest income from listed debt securities EERESFEUA 903,340

Bank interest income RITHI B U A 89,367 7,824

2,359,868 7,824

6. NET CHANGE IN FAIR VALUE OF 6. ATV EZEREERIRz2EME

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT EHAGEZ A ESHEE
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2012 2011
2012 % 20114
HK$ HK$
BT PETT
Net realized loss on financial assets BRATEBRERYRZ
at fair value through profit or loss SREESEERTE (14,916,621) (778,960)
Net unrealized gain/(loss) on financial BEATEBEREBEREYEREZS/M
assets at fair value through profit or loss BEAERW(F18)FE 27,838,630 (40,862,135)
Net realized gain on financial liabilities BAHEBERERYRZ
at fair value through profit or loss SRBEFHREKEFE 485,350 2,233,387
13,407,359 (39,407,708)
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7. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 7. BRBIADEF(E8)
The Company’s profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after charging/ RARZBRBATE R, (B8 &30k, (FHA) A
(crediting): THIBIEESL
2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Investment management fee (note 10) REEEE(H:E10) 4,917,512 5,219,572
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss, net HNE (Wees ),/ B518 - FEE (184) 75,171
Auditors’ remuneration I EREM BN & 286,500 277,000
Legal and professional fees FERBEEATER 76,401 830,674
8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEM<
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the RELETRAREBRRRDIE 161 R T AR
Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies ZAFEESHEMT :

Ordinance, is as follows:

2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$ HK$
BT PETT
Fees ik 465,348 467,092
Other emoluments Hip < - -
465,348 467,002

(a) Independent non-executive directors (@) BUFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during FAZNFBILIERTEEHRSAT

the year were as follows:

2012 2011
20125 2011 4F
HK$ HK$
BT PETT
Mr. Siu Kam Chau Ot 116,337 116,773
Professor Xu Yangsheng BHEHE 116,337 116,773
Mr. Doyle Ainsworth Dally Doyle Ainsworth Dally 5c 4 116,337 116,773
349,011 350,319




8.

10.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

Executive directors

(b)

The fees paid to executive directors during the year were as
follows:

8.
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EEME(E)
(b) HITES

FAXMTFRTEENCSIT

2012 2011
20125 20114
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Mr. Craig Blaser Lindsay Craig Blaser Lindsay 5t4E = -
Mr. Wang Junyan FlEExE - -
Mr. Gu Xu BBEE 116,337 116,773
116,337 116,773
PERSONNEL 9. AE
The Company did not employ any personnel during the year (2011: RARRERILERBEMAS (20115 ) ©
Nil).
FEES 10. €/
Administration fee THEES

HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited (the “Administrator”) is entitled to
receive an administration fee which is calculated at each valuation
day at the following rates:

First HK$800 million of net asset value
Next HK$1,200 million of net asset value
On the remainder of net asset value

0.140% per annum
0.125% per annum
0.110% per annum

The administration fee is subject to a monthly minimum fee of
HK$73,000 (reduced by 50% in the first six months after listing)
and is payable monthly in arrears. The administration fee for the
year was HK$876,000 (2011: HK$651,113). As at 31 December
2012, an administration fee of HK$73,000 (2011: HK$73,000) was
payable to the Administrator.

HSBC Trustee (Cayman) Limited ([1TELEE A 1)
BRUENSHERE T EBRFENTHER
[

BEEFENEESEST FF0.140%
BEFENTE2EET FHH0.125%
BEEFENBR TS HFF0.110%

THEBREAXTARKEKERT73,0008T(R L
mEENEAERS50%) R ERBEREA AKX
fif o RFEITIREIEE £876,000/8 70 (20114
651,113787T) 2012412 831 H » 1THET
# 73,0007 70(2011 4F © 73,0008 70) B 17
HEEA o
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10. FEES (Continued)

Valuation fee

The Administrator is also entitled to a fee of HK$8,000 per additional
valuation. This is payable on a monthly basis for a calculation of the
Company’s net asset value on an ad-hoc basis. No valuation fee
was charged for the year (2011: Nil). As at 31 December 2012, no
valuation fee was payable to the Administrator (2011: Nil).

Custodian fee

HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited (the “Custodian”)
is entitled to receive a custodian fee which is calculated at each
valuation day at the following rates:

First HK$800 million of net asset value
Next HK$1,200 million of net asset value
On the remainder of net asset value

0.040% per annum
0.085% per annum
0.030% per annum

The custodian fee is subject to a monthly minimum fee of
HK$15,000 (reduced by 50% in the first six months after listing) and
is payable monthly in arrears.

The custodian fee for the year was HK$180,000 (2011:
HK$144,448). As at 31 December 2012, a custodian fee of
HK$15,000 (2011: HK$15,000) was payable to the Custodian.

Management fee

The Investment Manager is entitled to a management fee accruing
monthly at the annual rate of 2% of the net asset value of the
Company on each valuation day and payable monthly in arrears.

The management fee for the year was HK$4,917,512 (2011:
HK$5,219,572). As at 31 December 2012, a management fee of
HK$414,986 (2011: HK$392,501) was payable to the Investment
Manager.

10. EF (&)
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10.

11.

FEES (Continued)

Performance fee

The Investment Manager is entitled to receive a performance fee
at the rate of 20% per annum of the net increase in the net asset
value per share on the immediately preceding valuation date, above
the previous highest net asset value per share on any preceding
valuation date in respect of which a performance fee was last
paid (or where no performance fee has been paid, the aggregate
placing price of the shares subscribed at the listing date) multiplied
by the number of shares in issue at the time of calculating the
performance fee. The performance fee is payable semi-annually in
arrears. No performance fee was charged for the year (2011: Nil).
As at 31 December 2012, no performance fee was payable to the
Investment Manager (2011: Nil).

TAXATION

Cayman Islands

Under the current Cayman Islands law, there is no income tax,
corporation tax, capital gains tax or any other kinds of tax on
profits or gains or tax in the nature of estate duty or inheritance tax
currently in effect.

The Company received an undertaking from the Governor-in-
Council of the Cayman lIslands to the effect that, for a period
of twenty years from the date of the undertaking, no law that is
hereafter enacted in the Cayman Islands imposing any tax on
income will be levied on the Company.

Hong Kong

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Company did not generate any assessable profits in Hong Kong
during the year (2011: Nil). The major component of income tax
charge for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011 are:

10.

11.
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2012 2011

20125 20114

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Provision for the year FREE - -
Deferred tax (note 18) EIERLIE (P7E18) 1,373,114 -
Tax charge for the year FABIEMY 1,373,114 -
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11.

12.

TAXATION (Continued)

Hong Kong (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit/(loss) before
tax using the statutory rate to the tax expense at the effective tax
rate is as follows:

11.

B ()
it ()

RAEEREAERBANET, (1R EANTH
B BB ERER R ENRAHERET

2012 2011

2012 20114

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Profit/(loss) before tax BRAATE S, (E518) 6,181,434 (49,098,434)

Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% BETEE 16.5% T EHTEIE 1,019,937 (8,101,242

Income not subject to tax BAEZRBRBA (386,836) (1,291)

Investment loss not deductible for tax AR IR & B8 - 6,197,184

Expenses not deductible for tax LR E0 )53 1,201,728 1,461,317

Tax losses not recognized RIERBIIEEE - 444,032

Tax losses utilized from previous period EINARIF E R E 18 (461,715) -
Tax charge at the effective rate of 22.2% BB E22.2% (2011 4 : 0%)

(2011: 0%) FTEMBIESE 1,373,114 -

PRC

No provision was made for PRC taxation in the financial statements
as the Company did not generate any PRC sourced income during
the year (2011: Nil).

EARNING/(LOSS) PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earning per share amount is based on
the Company’s profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of HK$4,808,320 (2011: loss of HK$49,098,434) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year of 303,000,000 (2011: 298,849,315 ordinary shares). No
adjustment has been made to the basic earning per share amount
presented for the year ended 31 December 2012 in respect of a
dilution as the Company had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares
in issue during the year (2011: Nil).

12.

HE

AR A RIE S A S BIE A ERA - 8
W ER B R A P B TR B (2011 & -
) o

RARERESKAARGER
&R, (Ei8)

BREAENCBEULBESTEABEARE
€ 7N R &) 3% 74,808,320 T (2011 4F © K58
49,098,434 B 7T ) R A F [ B BT E MR INHE T
#)81303,000,000 f% (2011 4F : 298,849,315 & &
BRGTESE - ARARRRAFEIWED T
TBEZEEE @R Bt WEHEHE2012
F12 AN BIEFEBR 23 2 BRERBFIEL
BRAEE (20116  8]) -
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13. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 13. FERER H AW IE
RECEIVABLES
2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$ HK$
BT I
Prepayments TESIE 256,591 261,161
Interest income receivable from debt securities FEUTIE TS5 5 F 2 UL A 432,553 -
Bank interest receivable JEUSRTTHI B 27,793 584
Other receivables HAth U A - 320,703
716,937 582,448
As at the end of the reporting period, none of the above receivables RS HAK » il FEUCE B R B IR B -

is either past due or impaired.

14. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 14 BEAFEEBEZIRZERE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS =3
2012 2011
2012 20114
HK$ HKS
BT BT
Listed equity securities: FTRRES
- Hong Kong —&B8 122,449,720 12,979,050
— The United States — %6 16,291,412 13,871,056
138,741,132 26,850,106
Listed debt securities: FEBES
— Singapore —¥rns 29,862,177 -
168,603,309 26,850,106
The fair values of the listed equity securities and listed debt RS R EMESESHN A TEIREE
securities are determined based on the quoted market bid prices HMELFZ R MEARTIRENTISRES
available on the relevant stock exchanges at the end of the JE e

reporting period.

Net unrealized gain on financial assets at fair value through BRATEEBERIE SRMEE 2 REHR K
profit or loss of HK$27,838,630 (2011: Net unrealized loss of JF{E27,838,630/87T (2011 F : REREEFE
HK$40,862,135) has been recognized in profit or loss in the 40,862,135 8 70) EN 2 E SR E M B E P
statement of comprehensive income. TR o
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15.

16.

17.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 15. RERBFEEE
2012 2011
2012 20114
HK$ HKS$
BT BT
Cash at bank RITIRE 537,159 3,664,389
Short-term time deposits RHEAE R 75,863,309 207,997,452
76,400,468 211,661,841
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank HRITIR S HENET BIRTTFRN R 2 Z B F LB
deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for varying BFB - ST HFER2HRNT—RAE=f@A
periods between one day to three months depending on the TE  RIERRRHBeH K 2B8IEmE - M
immediate cash requirements of the Company, and earn interest at 2 HATE BT AR & R BT SR R RIS, o $RT
the respective short-term time deposit rates. The cash at bank and ReREHERFEREFATE DBELRTE
short-term time deposits are placed with Hongkong and Shanghai [RAA] -
Banking Corporation Limited.
OTHER PAYABLES 16. HESRE
As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the other payables are non- 2012 % 2011612 A31H - HfER IR
interest-bearing and have an average term of less than three DM ERTFEF DR =EA -
months.
AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY 17. B —EEE R BFIE

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the amount due to a related
company represents management fee payable to the Investment
Manager. The amount is non-interest bearing and has a repayment
term of less than one month.

R2012F K 2011F12 A31 8 » BN —fEEE
NEIGRIBIEEMNREEIBAZ ERER © %2708
TWFE RERIR DA —@EA -
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18. DEFERRED TAX 18. IEERIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the FRELEFRIBAGREEZSNT

years are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE

Unrealized gain on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

RAFEEBREBRIIERZ
SRIEEZREBRIKE
HK$
T
At 1 January 2011, 31 December R2011F1H1H 2011412 A31H
2011 and 1 January 2012 &2012%1A1H -
Deferred tax charged to profit FAREZRE R 2 IELERIE
or loss during the year (note 11) (FF&E11) 1,865,752
Gross deferred tax liabilities M2012F 12 A31HZ
at 31 December 2012 RIETIA B B4R 1,865,752
Deferred tax assets ELEBEEE
Losses available for offsetting
against future taxable profits
A A R IER B R T 2 B8
HK$
BT
At 1 January 2011, 31 December R2011FE1A18 2011412 A31H
2011 and 1 January 2012 K2012%1 A1H -
Deferred tax credited to profit FARIEZET AZIRLER A
or loss during the year (note 11) (MHsE11) 492,638
Gross deferred tax assets R2012F 12 A31 B2
at 31 December 2012 IEAEF IR & EE BB 492,638
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18. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 18. IEERIE(E)
Deferred tax assets (Continued) EEHEEE (&)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities HEFME - A TRENIEEERBEERIB
have been offset in the statement of financial position. The following AORKIE o L NARA RGBT IS B R 2 IEER
is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Company for THEREB DM ¢

financial reporting purposes:

HK$
BT
Net deferred tax liabilities recognized TER AR R R N EERR 2
in the statement of financial position EERIE & EFRE 1,373,114
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of AR R AR SR A B B T A ET S Tl e R -
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
19. ISSUED CAPITAL 19. ERITRAK
2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$ HK$
B BT
Authorized: VERE ¢
776,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each 776,000,000 & FRREE 0.1 87T
(2011: 776,000,000 shares of 215 (2011 £ = 776,000,000
HK$0.1 each) MR EE 0.1 BT 2 iR H,) 77,600,000 77,600,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITREE
303,000,000 shares 303,000,000 & &A% EI1E 0.1 7T
of HK$0.1 each (2011: 303,000,000 2 B4 (2011 4 + 303,000,000
shares of HK$0.1 each) B RETEI(E 0.1 BT 2 B ) 30,300,000 30,300,000




19.

20.

ISSUED CAPITAL (Continued)

On 6 January 2011, a total of 303,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each (the “Placing Shares”) were placed at a price of
HK$1.03 per share for a total cash consideration, before the
related issue expenses, of HK$312,090,000. The issued and fully
paid capital of the Company was increased to HK$30,300,000
and resulted in a share premium of HK$281,790,000, before
deducting the share placement expenses of HK$24,057,224.
The Placing Shares are not redeemable at the discretion of the
shareholders. The net proceeds of the Placing, after deduction of
the Start-up Costs of the Company, were subsequently applied by
the Investment Manager in making investments according to the
investment objectives, policies and restrictions of the Company
and the requirements of the Articles, the Listing Rules and the
Investment Management Agreement. Any proceeds not deployed
will be placed on bank deposits or invested in money market
instruments or money market funds.

Dealings in the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
commenced on 6 January 2011. After listing, no director of the
Company or the Investment Manager, or the Investment Manager
itself, will hold any shares in the Company.

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

The calculation of net asset value per share is based on
the net assets of the Company as at 31 December 2012 of
HK$243,187,285 (2011: HK$238,378,965) and on 303,000,000
ordinary shares being in issue as at 31 December 2012 (2011:
303,000,000 ordinary shares).

19.

20.
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ERITRA(E)

201141 A6 H + & F£303,000,000 % &M
BOo BT @R ([BLE/RGm ) IZER1.03%5
TCRIER T UARE - MIBRIEREEITHZ AR &R
{4858 /4 312,090,000 7T ° ANA R B 31T M A
AR 230,300,000/ 7T © BMRHE SR
24,057,224 8 LRI B R 7 /@ (8 281,790,000 7
TC o RRERM A HREEIEER - #EEEA
HBRELIRERRIEARBIMNEEBE  BER
BRI - ARAAREMEIRME - EmARRI R
BERG R ATHBFERESNMERIEFE
(EHR AR EIKEER) « (RS BAT
BIBESFIERITERSAEREEEMISZTA
REMMHEESD -

RRARBRMN2011F1 A6 ARBRERZHME
8o LR ARBHEREEEANES - I
BERARFWLERAAR R -

BREEFE

EREEFEDIZRARFNR2012F12 A 31
B 1 & E ¥ {H243,187,285/% 7T(20114 :
238,378,965 8 7T ) & 7% H B %17 303,000,000 %
EAL (2011 4 : 303,000,000 A% @RS ) 5TE ©
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21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

21. BELXRS

BT HELSFBERREMHISANBEST XS

In addition to the related party transactions detailed elsewhere

in these financial statements, the Company had the following
transactions with related parties during the year:

Investment Manager — CITIC Securities International Investment
Management (HK) Limited

The Investment Manager is responsible to manage, supervise
and direct the investment, disposition and re-investment of the
assets of the Company, on a discretionary basis, but subject
to the investment objective and restrictions of the Company.
The Investment Manager is entitled to receive management
and performance fees for its respective services in terms of the
agreement dated 10 December 2010. Details of the fees to which
the Investment Manager is entitled are provided in note 10 to the
financial statements. The investment agreement expired on 31
December 2012 and a new investment agreement was entered into
by the Investment Manager and the Company on 19 December
2012 for the period from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2014.

Two directors of the Company served on the Board of Directors of
the Investment Manager for the years ended 31 December 2012
and 2011.

The directors consider the key management personnel of the
Company comprise its Board of Directors, whose remuneration is
shown in note 8 to the financial statements.

S ARRBIRFREBETETTIIIRS

REEHEA -FISUF B RE EHE (B8 )FR

2A]

BEEBEABEUSENEEE B8  BEER
BRARRBEENRE BERBRE  HE
EARRNBMEBERRHOR - HEERA
E2010F 12 A10H BRI M H G BiER
HIEHMSEREBMEEERKRIRE - BRI
BER AR B AF BRI B RERMAE
10 ° B WHHN 2012412 A31 B M - AI8E
BIEABRAANTDNR201212 A19B 21
WEWHE - HIRE2013F1 A1 B E20144F
128311k -

KABRMBESNEHZ20129 K% 2011412 531
HIFFERREEBAERSTH -

EERRAATHREBASRFREEEENK
8 REF I BRKRM TSR
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22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 22, RERESEMIA
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial HHERERMITENRERRNEEENAT :

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
2012 2012 F

TREE

Financial assets

Financial assets at
fair value through

profit or loss: Loans and
Held for trading receivables Total
BRATFEERER
FIBRC SREE !
BIEEE EBXRREWRFIE Wz
HK$ HK$ HK$
Financial assets included FEATE IR R EH A
in prepayments and FEUFRIE /Y
other receivables TREE - 460,346 460,346
Financial assets at fair value BN EBRIER
through profit or loss TR e MEE 168,603,309 - 168,603,309
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEE - 76,400,468 76,400,468
168,603,309 76,860,814 245,464,123
Financial liabilities =R
At amortized
cost
& 3%
HK$
BT
Other payables E M 5IE 745,329
Amount due to a related company S —FEREE R FIF0A 414,986
1,160,315
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22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 22. RERIEI S LR T E ()

(Continued)
2011

Financial assets

2011 4F

TREE

Financial assets at

fair value through

profit or loss: Loans and
Held for trading receivables Total
RAFEEBER
R SRVEE ¢
HEEE BERRERFE “EE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Financial assets included FEATERFIE R E A
in prepayments and FEWIE 2
other receivables SREE - 321,287 321,287
Financial assets at fair value EBEATEERIER
through profit or loss PR SREE 26,850,106 - 26,850,106
Cash and cash equivalents B kHeEE - 211,661,841 211,661,841
26,850,106 211,983,128 238,833,234
Financial liabilities EA=NE
At amortized
cost
REE S AN
HK$
BT
Other payables H AT 50E 322,929
Amount due to a related company e —EIREE A FIFRIE 392,501
715,430




24. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and
disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for
which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair
value are observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for
which any inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair
value are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

As at 31 December 2012, the Company’s financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss was HK$168,603,309 (2011:
HK$26,850,106). All of them were classified as Level 1 fair value
measurements.

During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of fair value
measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3.

24,
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DNHEER

RATMERATIERET REESRIAZ AT
A :

F—H RAHBEEREENERTISNRE
(CRESFR)HENATE

B RAERIDENAFE - M&FHE
RONAAR NEERKNEE AT EBREE - I
HEARATFEAEATE

F=A MAERTFENATE - MREHE
BRI EABABELSHRBEATBEETSER(T
AHEBEAEGE  THEARATFEAEX

By 488
-2

R2012F 12 A31H » AREIEAFEBEBER
DR 2 & A& E A 168,603,309 78 7t.(2011 4F -
26,850,106/87C) * HIRE — R AT EFEHET

DER o

HZE012FM2011 12 A31BILFE  F—
WERE — MNTERTE 2 M EEE o R
EREREGE=R -
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

25 XEREEEERBE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company’s objective in managing risk is the creation and
protection of shareholders’ value. The ultimate responsibility in
defining and maintaining the Company’s risk control framework,
setting the appropriate risk parameters for the Company and in
continuously monitoring compliance of the Company’s portfolio
with the investment objective and policies and investment
restrictions lies with the Board of Directors of the Company, that will
be advised by the Investment Manager.

A risk committee consisting of Mr. Wang, Mr. Lindsay and Mr. Doyle
Dally has been formed to monitor the operational and portfolio risks
to the Company. The risk committee will monitor the Investment
Manager including reviewing whether the investment objective
and polices and investment restrictions are being followed by the
Investment Manager. In case of any deviation, the risk committee
will discuss deviations with the Investment Manager immediately
and monitor any agreed remedial action. For all material deviations
the risk committee will formulate recommendations to the Board on
the appropriate remedial actions to be made. The risk committee
will meet on a monthly basis, or more regularly if a meeting is
requested by any risk committee member.

AARMEREEBRDAIERRERRER -
AREAEEGEERERRFEARRF R LRIZES
BER  REARFSENRBR2HISEEREA
RREMIREAE ERERE B R RBERMRER
FIMREEE  REBEARBAESSRHEE
B

AAGIEKRYEREZEEE - BE &AL - Lindsay
S 4 ) Doyle Dally B AE48RY - AEER AR RIHE
BERFREHECRR - EREZEGRERKEER
ARRIE - BEESEREEEAERERIRES
ERBERTIEERS o WEEAREE - BREE
B EREE EE AR BB R ER AR
ERENHRITE - HRFEEANRERER -
EREZEERAESSIRLRIES HRITEMN
@ o RRZEEesARAS X MEARKRE
Bgp 8B RASE TS H I -




25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and
the value of individual securities. The Company is exposed to equity
price risk arising from individual equity investments classified as
trading equity investments (note 14) as at the end of the reporting
period. The Company’s listed investments are listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, New York Stock Exchange, and NASDAQ
and are valued at quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period.

The market equity indices for the following stock exchanges, at the
close of business of the nearest trading day in the year to the end of
the reporting period, and their respective highest and lowest points
during the year were as follows:

25.
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MR EREE R R RBCR(E)

REER R

IR RERE R IR RIEBUKT R ERIE#EE
EEMBHRANEREF L TETHAERE 78
ERRARRIFEHNERERRRIEE DS
R HBRERE (14 EREERE - AR
AN LELTRENBEBARSA  HOESFX
SFr N ETER BT RREHRIETS®RE
o

FRAEREHRNRIOR 5 B & XFRERE
TIBHR B TIGRERE - ARERER
FBENERRRERKNT

High/low
31 December =/ &
2012 2012

20124
12831 H 2012 5
Hong Kong - Hang Seng Index BEE—BEEH 22,656.92 22,666.59/18,185.59
The United States — NYA Index FEBE—NYAE# 8,443.51 8,516.43/7,285.53
The United States — NASDAQ Index EE - MATET IR 3,019.51 3,183.95/2,648.36
High/low
31 December 2/1K
2011 2011

2011 £
12A31H 20114
Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index BE—BEEH 18,434.39 24,419.62/16,250.27
The United States — NYA Index EE —NYAEER 7,477.03 8,671.41/6,571.45
The United States — NASDAQ Index EE - MATER R 2,605.15 2,873.54/2,335.83
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

25. BIEBEERERBE(E)

Equity price risk (Continued) REERRR(E)
TRINREMBEMBESRFTIENBELTER
B EERREREY AN e EREE
ANEEFEERESFEABRFEESBAE
B EMET c EEEFR  BEREZZERNGHET
NEREDTBETR @ ZBHGEK -

Management’s best estimate of the effect on the net assets
attributable to equity holders and on the change in net assets
attributable to equity holders from operations due to a reasonably
possible change in equity indices, with all other variables held
constant is indicated in the following table. In practice, the actual
trading results may differ from the sensitivity analysis below and the
difference could be material.

PRARSEIIRE AN - U T SR AT R IEHMNEE
EOHE -

In addition to the change in equity indices, the sensitivity analysis
below includes the effect of foreign currency exchange rates.

2012 201245

% of reasonable

possible change Change in net

of the relevant assets

benchmark index (before tax effect)

Relevant market index Beta HEAEEEHEE EETFEEH

HETISEH g AR BB DL (RRB ISR EAT)

HK$

BT

Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index BE—BEEE 0.0593 10 +1,000,056

The United States — NYA Index ZBF —NYATEH 0.1398 =10 +2,357,830

The United States — NASDAQ Index ~ FEE — 4 HTE R 188K 0.1642 +10 +2,768,709
2011 20114

% of reasonable
possible change

Change in net

of the relevant assets

benchmark index (before tax effect)

Relevant market index Beta TR AR BEFHES
IR TIS R R AREEHNE DL (R E 2R
HK$

BT

Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index BE—EEEH 0.3816 +10 +1,024,600
The United States — NYA Index EB —NYAEEL 0.5086 +10 +1,365,596



25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will encounter
difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
Exposure to liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that
the Company could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than
expected. To limit this risk, management monitors the Company’s
liquidity position from time to time.

The Company aims to maintain sufficient cash to meet its liquidity
requirements by the ongoing monitoring of cash positions and
future cash flows. The following table summarises the maturity
profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within six months
equal their carrying amounts, as the impact of discounting is
insignificant. The table also analyses the maturity profile of the
Company’s financial assets (undiscounted where appropriate) in
order to provide a complete view of the Company’s contractual
commitments and liquidity.

The maturity grouping of financial liabilities is based on the
remaining period from the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date. When a counterparty has a choice of
when the amount is paid, the liability is allocated to the earliest
period in which the Company can be required to pay.

Analysis of debt and equity securities at fair value through profit
or loss into maturity groupings is based on the expected date on
which these assets will be realized. For other assets, the analysis
into maturity groupings is based on the remaining period from the
end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date or, if
earlier, the expected date on which the assets will be realized.

25.

Notes to Financial Statements
g E

31 December 2012 2012412 A31 H

AR EE R R RBCR(E)

RBETERE

MBESRERTIEARBBHEABITEARS K
S eREEEECRBENEENEAR R
PEDEBIRN AR R A e BRIBREEE
% o RIRBILRE - BEEEE T ERAARN
RBEDANR

ARAFHEEFRSRARARRAST - §EH
RARRE WHBERBESER - TRER
BHRTRASREMRE A AR A EOTH
1B - HRTERFELTEK - N EAREHH
EHRENEREE - ZRTOMARRERMEE
ERIEER CREINER - HER) - UEBREA
RENBLEERRBES -

CREENIHANETNERARERREEHE
HIE THIME - MXSHETERFEFEHE - A
Bl EEARBIZERAATORIILA -

BAFRBBBRIIRET AD D EOERS L2
SEFOMIENZEFEERBERNEFAH -
AEAZIEID A E M EEDITIER BREMRK
EZANTMBENRTHRN(MER)ZEE/E
BHTEET B -




Notes to Financial Statements
B ISR ER M A

31 December 2012 20124 12 A 31 H

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 25. BIAMEERERBEKGE)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REESERE(E)

At 31 December 2012

R2012%F 12831 H

Less than 1to
On demand 1 month 3 months Total
BEXR DiA11E A 1Z3@A et
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets included AT ATER FUE K
in prepayments and H h FEUGRIE )
other receivables TREE - - 460,346 460,346
Financial assets at fair value BAFEERIER
through profit or loss PR EREE 168,303,309 - - 168,303,309
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEE 537,159 75,863,309 - 76,400,468
Total financial assets EREERE 168,840,468 75,863,309 460,346 245,164,123
Other payables E At JE FE - - 745,329 745,329
Amount due to RS —F
a related company [EZRE/NGIE S E] - 414,986 - 414,986
Total financial liabilities SRaERE - 414,986 745,329 1,160,315
At 31 December 2011 R2011F12A31H
Less than 11to
On demand 1 month 3 months Total
RER L1 EA 1Z=31EA #Et
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets included AT ATER A K
in prepayments and HAb e RIE 2
other receivables SREE - - 321,287 321,287
Financial assets at fair value BEATESERIER
through profit or loss PR SREE 26,850,106 - - 26,850,106
Cash and cash equivalents BekAeEE 3,664,389 207,997,452 - 211,661,841
Total financial assets TREEAE 30,514,495 207,997,452 321,287 238,833,234
Other payables E bS58 - - 322,929 322,929
Amount due to JEA—F
a related company RAENRFIA - 392,501 - 392,501
Total financial liabilities TERAERE - 392,501 322,929 715,430




25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument
and future cash flows will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
interest rates.

The majority of the Company’s interest rate exposure arises from
short-term time deposits and debt securities.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible changes in the interest rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Company’s interest income (before tax effect) with
respect to the Company’s net cash position.
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MR EREE R R RBCR(E)

R =E R

MEREBESRTARARKRSRENEEREE
5N R R BN R o

RABAERD M X R K B 5 B T R R BT

KA o
Ag

TREH  RABRRIETES  ARAFE
WA (BB 881 AR TFRLHR L
AR BB HAE -

Change in Sensitivity of
Net exposure basis points interest income
R HEE%Ey JNEWARBRE
HK$ HK$
BT A TT

2012 20124
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEE 76,400,468 =50 +382,002
Listed debt securities FhEBES 29,862,177 +50 +149,311
Change in Sensitivity of
Net exposure basis points interest income
R AR MEMABURE
HK$ HK$
BT BT

2011 20114
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEE 211,661,841 +50 +1,058,309

Currency risk ¥R

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will
fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars. Since
the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States dollar, the
Board of Directors considers the Company’s exposure to foreign
currency risk to be minimal; as such no sensitivity analysis has been
presented in these financial statements.
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

MR EREE R R RBCR(E)

25.

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument
will cause a financial loss for the Company by failing to discharge an
obligation. The Company’s exposure to credit risk is monitored by
the Investment Manager on an ongoing basis.

The Company is exposed to credit risk on its cash and cash
equivalents and investments placed with Hong Kong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited, which management believes is of high
credit quality.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
the counterparties fail to perform their obligations without taking
account of any collateral held as at the reporting date in relation to
each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of
those assets as disclosed in the statement of financial position.

Capital management

As a result of the ability to issue and repurchase shares, the
capital of the Company can vary depending on subscriptions to
the Company and repurchases by the Company. The primary
objectives of the Company’s capital management are to safeguard
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and to invest
the capital in investments meeting the description and risk exposure
indicated in the Company’s prospectus. The Investment Manager
manages the capital of the Company in accordance with the
Company’s investment objectives and policies. The Company is not
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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26. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD  26.

27.

Following the new investment management agreement dated 19
December 2012 (the “Agreement”) as disclosed in note 21, the
Investment Manager is entitled to a management fee accruing
monthly at the annual rate of 1.8% of the net asset value of the
Company on each valuation day, subject to a maximum amount of
HK$4,200,000 and payable monthly in arrears from 1 January 2013
onwards.

Under the Agreement, the Investment Manager is entitled to receive
a performance fee payable semi-annually in arrears and calculated
at the rate of 20% of any net appreciation (after deduction of the
management fees for the relevant period) in the net asset value
per share on the immediately preceding valuation date, above
the previous highest net asset value per share on any preceding
valuation date in respect of which a performance fee was last paid
(or where no performance fee has been paid, the aggregate placing
price of the shares subscribed at the listing date) multiplied by the
number of shares in issue at the time of calculating the performance
fee.

Further details of the Agreement are set out in the circular of the
Company dated 30 November 2012.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by
the Board of Directors on 21 March 2013.

27.
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Summary of Financial Information
HHERBE

31 December 2012 20124 12 A31 H

-

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Company
for the last two financial years, as extracted from the published audited
financial statements is set out below. No financial information was
presented for the financial years ended 2007 to 2009 was due to the fact
that the Company was incorporated on 1 February 2010.

RABREMEN RFE 2 EEREERBEBERE(E
BB EERMBRZ)HINT - HRERQBERR
ER2010F2 A1 HEFMA - SR E =2007 F &2
2009 F |E M F I 25| IEER o

RESULTS E
Period from
1 February 2010
(date of
Year ended Year ended  incorporation) to
31 December 31 December 31 December
2012 2011 2010
20102 A1 H
HZE20124F HE2011F  (GEMKZEH)
12831 H 12H31H Z 20104
IEFE IFEE 12 A31 HILEM
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
REVENUE 'ON 2,359,868 7,824 -
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BRBLATEF (&8) 6,181,434 (49,098,434) (555,377)
Income tax FriSHi (1,373,114) - -
PROFIT/(LOSS) AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE ARAFEEERZEZEEA
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD EiEER R
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY wAL(BR)REE
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY Wi (8 BE 4,808,320 (49,098,434) (555,377)
EARNING/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE AR B E
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS EREE AEN
OF THE COMPANY BRERN(&H#E) 0.02 (0.16) (555,377)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEENEE
2012 2011 2010
20124 20114 20104
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BTT BT
TOTAL ASSETS BEHAE 245,720,714 239,094,395 24,057,317
TOTAL LIABILITIES E8EHAE (2,533,429) (715,430) (24,612,694)
243,187,285 238,378,965 (555,377)
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